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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Arab Bank plc
Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arab Bank Company, its subsidiaries, and
its sister Company “the Group” which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes
in owners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Arab Bank Group as of December 31, 2016, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements in Jordan that
are relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Explanatory Paragraph

We refer to disclosure Number (57) in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in
relation to the lawsuit filed against the Bank in the United States of America in 2004. This has no
impact on our unmodified opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters:

Provision for Lawsuits and Legal Claims
Risks

According to the International Financial
Reporting Standards, the Group has to estimate
the provision for lawsuits and legal claims, in
particular the lawsuit and the related settlement
in the United States of America, legal claims
associated with it, and the reserving against these
claims at the end of each reporting period.
Moreover, since the provision for legal claims is
based on accounting estimates it’s considered a
key audit matter since the assessment process
depends heavily on professional judgment which
is based on the expected assumptions of the
future outcomes for the lawsuits and related
settlements, and management’s estimates based
on the legal inputs and the recommendations of
the Bank’s legal counsels.

Adequacy of Provision for Impairment of
Credit Facilities

The provision for impairment of credit facilities
is considered a key audit matter to the financial
statements, as its calculation requires
assumptions, management’s use of estimates for
low credit ratings and the probability that debts
will not be collected as a result of the
deteriorating economic and financial conditions
in light of inadequate guarantees.

The nature and characteristics of credit facilities
granted to these debtors vary from one sector to
another and from one country to another, due to
the external wide span of the Bank. Therefore,
the impairment  provision  calculation
methodology differs due to varied sectors and
varied risk assessment relating to those countries
and their legal and regulatory requirements.

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

Our audit procedures included obtaining
support from internal and external legal
counsels handling the lawsuits in evaluating the
adequacy of managements’ estimates and
expected outcome probabilities, in particular to
those related to the risk probability assumptions
and contingent liabilities. In addition, our
procedures assessing the adequacy of the legal
cases disclosure and the related settlement in the
United States of America set out in Note (57).

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

The performed audit procedures included
understanding the nature of the credit facilities
portfolio, testing the internal control system
followed in credit granting and monitoring, and
assessing the reasonableness of management’s
estimates of the provision for impairment. We
also have understood the Bank’s policy in
calculating the provision, and tested a sample of
performing, watch-list, and non-performing
credit facilities at the Group level as a whole.
We have evaluated the factors affecting the
calculation of the provision for impairment of
credit facilities. This included evaluating the
available collaterals, customers’ financial net
worth, management’s estimates of future cash
flows, and regulatory requirements issued by
central banks.

-2 .
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Evaluation of Unquoted Investment in
Regulated Markets

The recognition of unquoted investments in
regulated markets is based on the fair value of
key inputs available. These investments are
stated in Notes (10) and (49). The valuation
technique used by the Group to measure the fair
value of these investment is based on market
index method for similar investments.

Bank’s Share of Associates’ Profits

The Bank accounts for its share of profits from
associates at the Group level in accordance with
the equity method as stated in Note (13). The
Bank’s share of the Group’s associates’ profit
forms a significant element of the statement of
income. As a result of lack of available audited
financial statements for public use of these
investments at the date of the preparation of the
Groups’ financial statements, the Group’s share
of associates’ profits, including one investment,
is booked based on the latest and most accurate
financial information available. This is based on
the information contained in the preliminary
results issued by these companies and the
information made  available by the
representatives on  their boards, to be
subsequently validated at a later date when these
investment in associates’ financial statements
are issued.

We have also discussed these factors with
executive management to verify the adequacy
of the provision, as well as recalculated the
provision needed for that sample.

Furthermore, we have also evaluated the
appropriateness and adequacy of the disclosure
with regard to the credit facilities impairment
provision and risks as stated in Note (11).

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

As a result of the lack of quoted market prices
for these investments, the valuation technique
in evaluating these investment is a key audit
matter to our audit. Thus, we have reviewed the
valuation model prepared by the Group, and
discussed it with the Group’s financial
management. Moreover, our audit procedures
included testing the internal control systems
related to the adopted valuation techniques
followed and assumptions to assess the
suitability of the valuation model or
appropriateness of the related assumptions.

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

The Group’s share of associates’ profits, which
is considered a key audit matter to the financial
statements, has been audited through our review
of the documents available to management that
support the calculated amounts. We have also
evaluated the reasonableness and adequacy of
the preliminary disclosures issued by these
companies and discussed the matter with the
Group’s financial management. Furthermore,
our audit procedures included obtaining
appropriate audit evidence through direct
communication with the independent auditors
of the key associate company in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing No.
600, as well as, conducting additional financial
and analytical studies on the other associates’
results.

-3 -
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Consolidated Financial Statements for the
Bank and its subsidiaries, in addition to Arab
Bank (Switzerland) Limited

The consolidation of the Bank’s subsidiaries is
effective from the acquisition date, which is the
date of transfer of control over the subsidiaries
by the Bank. The consolidated financial
statements reflect the financial position and
results of operations at the level of the
consolidated economic ownership of Arab Bank
plc and the sister company Arab Bank
(Switzerland) Limited, which is considered an
integral part of Arab Bank Group.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Due to its wide spread in multiple countries and
its dealing with numerous foreign currencies, the
Bank is exposed to the risk arising from the
fluctuation of those currencies due to the
economic conditions of those countries.
Therefore, translation of the financial assets and
financial liabilities of the branches, sister
company, and subsidiaries abroad from the local
currency (functional) to the US Dollar is
considered a key audit matter to our audit.
Moreover, exchange differences arising from the
revaluation of the net investment in the branches
and subsidiaries abroad are recorded in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income.

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

The effective control over the Bank’s
subsidiaries, in addition to reflecting
consolidation financial statements at the level of
the consolidated economic ownership of Arab
Bank plc and the sister company at the end of
each reporting period is considered a key audit
matter to our audit. Our audit procedures
included review of the Bank’s ability to govern
the strategic financial and operating policies of
the subsidiaries so as to obtain benefits from its
activities, through its appointment of the Board
members and executive management of these
subsidiary companies. The Bank obtains control
over the strategic financial and operating
policies of these companies.

Our audit procedures also included review of
the stock trading of the Banks’ sister company
whose operations are an integral part of Arab
Bank’s and its stock trading is also considered
an integral part Arab Bank plc stock trading,
accordingly, the sister company’s financial
statements is presented within the consolidated
financial statements of Arab Bank Group to
reflect the level of the consolidated economic
ownership.

Scope of Audit to Address the Risk

Our audit procedures included testing the
internal control system which relates to the
determination of foreign exchange rates
approved by the management in addition to
reviewing a sample of those rates and matching
them with the rates published by the Central
Bank of Jordan. Furthermore, we have
recalculated a sample of foreign exchange
translation differences reflected in the statement
of other comprehensive income.

-4 -
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Financial Derivatives and Hedging

The Bank’s portfolio includes financial
derivatives held for trading and hedging
purposes and evaluated through assessing the
information input into specialized systems to be
evaluated periodically. Such derivatives require
special abilities and continuous follow-up by the
management in addition to a highly accurate
internal control structure.

Scope of Audit Risk Approach

The fact that the valuation of the financial
derivatives and review of hedge accounting
need a valuation expert, it was considered as a
key audit matter to our audit. Thus, we obtained
the assistance of valuation experts to assess the
valuations and presentation of the financial
derivatives and hedge accounting in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial

Reporting Standards.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises of the
information stated in the Annual Report and does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidation financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit and we remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

-6 -
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any material deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

(Ll Jone

Amman — Jordan oitte & Touche (M.E.) — Jordan
January 29, 2017

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)

Public Accountants
Amman - Jordan
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ARAB BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks

Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial derivatives - positive fair value

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Other financial assets at amortized cost
Investment in associates
Fixed assets
Other assets
Deferred tax assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

Banks' and financial institutions' deposits
Customer deposits
Cash margin
Financial derivatives - negative fair value
Borrowed funds
Provision for income tax
Other provisions
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total Liabilities

Share capital
Share premium
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
General reserve
General banking risks reserve
Reserves with associates
Foreign currency translation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
Total Equity Attributable to the Shareholders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests
Total Owners' Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

December 31,
Note 2016 2015

USD '000 USD '000
6 7 809 343 9472 381
7 4622 181 2992 403
8 176 118 99018
9 698 516 831980
40 58 011 58 235
11 21 898 121 22 180 987
10 470912 479 038
12 7 640 955 9003 709
13 3077008 2916 290
14 463 633 451 444
15 472 203 500 479
16 73 390 58 629
47 460 391 49 044 593
17 3752999 3636 734
18 31082152 32799 228
19 2561426 2443 090
40 52517 53 705
20 271 185 75 745
21 242 377 235918
22 259 795 145 235
23 1072128 1627254
24 1276 12103
39 295 855 41 029 012
25 926 615 926 615
25 1225747 1225 747
26 798 443 753 065
27 977 315 977 315
28 1141 824 1141824
29 363 458 363 458
1 540 896 1 540 896
30 (402 682) (284 609)
31 (267 672) (260621)
32 1738 225 1 502 867
8 042 169 7 886 557
32 122 367 129 024
8 164 536 8015581
47 460 391 49 044 593

The accompanying notes from (1) to (58) are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements and should be read with them and with the accompanying independent auditor report.
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ARAB BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

REVENUE

Interest income
Less: interest expense
Net interest income
Net commissions income
Net interest and commissions income
Foreign exchange differences
Gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Dividends on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Group's share of profits of associates
Other revenue
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES
Employees' expenses
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Other provisions
TOTAL EXPENSES

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE INCOME TAX
Less: Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to :

Bank shareholders
Non-controlling interests
Total

Earnings per share attributable to Bank Shareholders
- Basic and Diluted (US Dollars)

Note 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

33 1 865 835 1815 895
34 751317 724 757
1114 518 1091 138
35 315903 319 603
1430 421 1410 741
61185 70 827
36 5147 14 315
10 7813 5430
13 334 964 356 981
37 86 882 50 066
1926 412 1908 360
38 439 105 440 652
39 338397 647 238
14 47 661 52 041
11 179 056 32891
22 131378 16 210
1135597 1189 032
790 815 719 328
21 258 149 277 205
532 666 442 123
522187 430 830

32 10 479 11293
532 666 442 123

54 0.81 0.67

The accompanying notes from (1) to (58) are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements and should be read with them and with the accompanying independent auditor report.



ARAB BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the Year

Add: Other comprehensive income items - after tax

Items that will be subsequently transferred to the consolidated statement of Income

Exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign operations
Items that will not be subsequently transferred to the consolidated statement of Income
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Change in Investment Revaluation Reserve

(Loss) gain from sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Total Other Comprchensive Income Items - after tax

TOTAL COMPREHNSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Aftributable to ;
- Bank shareholders
- Non-controlling interests

Total

Note 2016 2015
USD'000  USD '000

532 666 442123
30 (126551) (165 218)
31 (8706) (42 874)
(7 668) (42 905)

(1038) 31
(135 257) (208 092)
397 409 234 031
396 383 227 660

1026 6371
397 409 234 031

The accompanying notes from (1) to (58) are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements and should be read with them and with the accompanying independent auditor report.
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ARAB BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
=LA LU SIATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
=001 PLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before tax

Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortization
- Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized cost
- Net interest income
- (Gain) from sale of fixed assets
- Amortization of Intangible Assets
- (Gain) from revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Group's share from associates profits
- Other provisions
Total

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Balances with central banks (maturing after 3 months)
Deposits with banks and financial institutions (maturing after 3 months)
Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Other assets and financial derivatives
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Bank and financial institutions deposits (maturing afier 3 months)
Customer deposits
Cash margin
Other liabilities and financial derivatives
Net Cash (Used by) Generated by Operating Activities before Income Tax
Income tax paid
Net Cash (Used by) Generated by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale (Purchase) of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Maturity of other financial assets at amortized cost

(Increase) of investments in associates

Dividends received from associates

Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Purchase) of fixed assets

Proceeds from selling fixed assets - Net

(Purchase) of intangible assets

Net Cash Generated by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increased (Paid) borrowed funds

Dividends paid to shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Net Cash (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Exchange differences - change in foreign exchange rates
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the End of the Year

Note 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
790 815 719 328
14 47 661 52 041
11 179 056 32 891
(8096) 11762
(40211) (2312)
15 7112 7321
36 (1671) (8733)
10 (7813) (5430)
13 (334 964) (356 981)
131 378 16 210
763 267 466 097
- 103 436
(877 100) 11428
103 810 (211 850)
135 135 303 647
13739 10 335
(215 552) 429 144
(1717 076) 733 957
118 336 (460 468)
(536 044) 258 900
(2211 485) 1 644 626
(269 492) (279 171)
(2 480 977) 1.365 455
1075 (13 360)
1362 754 113 309
(273810) ( 752)
13 175 607 178 489
10 7813 5430
14 (97512) (71455)
64 149 22 965
(12873) (9583)
1473 203 225043
195 440 (11 346)
(229063) (101 080)
(5607) (5610)
(39 230) (118 036)
(1047 004) 1472 462
(118 073) (86771)
9514915 8129224
56 8 349 838 9514915

The accompanying notes from (1) to (58) are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements and should be read with them and with the accompanying independent auditor report.
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ARAB BANK GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. General

®* Arab Bank was established in 1930, and is registered as a Jordanian public shareholding
limited company. The Head Office of the Bank is domiciled in Amman - Jordan, and the
Bank operates worldwide through its 74 branches in Jordan and 122 branches abroad, it’s
subsidiaries and sister company Arab Bank (Switzerland) Limited.

*  Arab Bank plc shares are traded on Amman Stock Exchange.

* The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors in its meeting Number (1) on January 26™, 2017 and are subject to the approval of
the General Assembly of Shareholders.

2. Basis of Consolidation

*  The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arab Bank Group, presented in US
dollars, comprise the financial statements of Arab Bank ple, its sister company, Arab Bank
(Switzerland) Limited and its subsidiaries. The Group main subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage
of ownership Date of Principal Place of Paid-up
2016 2015 Acquisition Activity Incorporation Capital
Company Name % %
United

Europe Arab Bank plc 100.00 100.00 2006 Banking Kingdom €610m
Arab Bank Australia Limited 100.00 100.00 1994 Banking Australia AUD 69.3m
Islamic International Arab

Bank plc 100.00 100.00 1997 Banking Jordan JD 100m
Arab National Leasing Financial
Company L.L.C. 100.00 100.00 1996 Leasing Jordan JD 25m
Al-Arabi Investment Group Brokerage and

LL.C. 100.00 100.00 1996  Financial Services Jordan JD 14m
Arab Sudanese Bank Limited 100.00 100.00 2008 Banking Sudan SDG 117.5m
Al Arabi Investment Group - Brokerage and
Palestine 100.00 100.00 2009  Financial Services Palestine JD 1.7m
Arab Tunisian Bank 64.24 64.24 1982 Banking Tunisia TND 100m
Arab Bank Syria 51.29 51.29 2005 Banking Syria SYP 5.05b
Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance
Company plc 50.00 50.00 2006 Insurance Jordan JD 10m

®* Subsidiaries are companies under the effective control of Arab Bank ple. Control is
achieved when the Group has the power to govern the strategic financial and operating
policies of the subsidiary so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The investment in
subsidiaries is stated at cost when preparing the financial statements for Arab Bank Plc
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The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations
at the level of the consolidated economic ownership of Arab Bank plc and the sister
company Arab Bank (Switzerland) Limited, which is considered an integral part of Arab
Bank Group.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting policies of
those used by the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the Group.

The results of operations of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated statement of
income effective from the acquisition date, which is the date of transfer of control over the
subsidiary by the Group. The results of operations of subsidiaries disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of income up to the effective date of
disposal, which is the date of loss of control over the subsidiary.

Upon consolidation, inter-Group transactions and balances between Arab Bank plc, the
sister company, Arab Bank (Switzerland) Limited and other subsidiaries are eliminated.
Items in transit are stated within other assets or other liabilities, as appropriate. Non-
controlling interests (the interest not owned by the Group in the equity of subsidiaries) are
stated separately within owners' equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The acquisition method is used for all adjustments completed on the business combinations,
the costs of these business combination are measured at total fair value of assets of which
were waived, either being cash paid or other assets and the obligations incurred at the date
of exchange. All costs associated with the business combinations must be expensed in the
consolidated statement of Income and are not considered as a part of the acquisition cost.

3. __Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Re orting Standards (IFRSs

3. a. New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements:
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016, have been adopted in these financial statements. The application of
these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and
prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts.
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to Disclosure initiative.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements relating to accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets relating
to clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants.

Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements relating to accounting investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity
method in separate financial statements.
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* Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures relating to applying

the consolidation exception for investment entities.

* Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle covering amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7,

IAS 19 and IAS 34,

3. b. New and revised IFRSs in issue but not et effective and not early adopted
The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:
New and revised IFRSs

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016
Cycle amending IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes relating to the
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions
or parts of transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in
a foreign currency;

e the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred
income liability in respect of that consideration, in
advance of the recognition of the related asset,
expense or income; and

¢ the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is
non-monetary.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding
classification and measurement of share based payment
transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to

the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the
forthcoming new insurance contracts standard.
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Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph
57 to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a
change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself does
not constitute evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been
amended to state that the list of examples therein is non-
exhaustive.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
relating to disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the
additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential
amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge
accounting chapter in IFRS 9

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure,
present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or
the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify
leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16°s approach to lessor
accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)
relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from
and investor to its associate or joint venture.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010,
2013 and 2014)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments,

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting
requirements for financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains
requirements in the following areas:
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« Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified
by reference to the business model within which they are held and
their contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of
IFRS 9 introduces a 'fair value through other comprehensive
income' category for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilities
are classified in a similar manner to under IAS 39, however there
are differences in the requirements applying to the measurement
of an entity's own credit risk.

 Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected
credit loss' model for the measurement of the impairment of
financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before a credit loss is recognised

« Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model
that is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities
undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

« Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to
clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed
contracts,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. [FRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Specifically, the standard introduces a S-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

»  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

«  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

«  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.
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Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the Bank’s financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 , may have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Bank’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Bank’s
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2019.

The application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Bank’s financial statements in respect of revenue from contracts with
customers and the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities and the application of IFRS 16 may
have significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Bank’s financial statements
in respect of its leases.

4. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statement

. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee, the prevailing rules in the countries where the Group operates and the instructions
of the Central Bank of Jordan.

. The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the historical cost principle, except for
some of the financial assets and financial liabilities which are stated at fair value as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements.

. The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those applied in the
year ended December 31, 2015 except for what is stated in note (3 - a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

a. __ Revenue Recognition
Interest Income and Expenses
Interest income and expenses for all interest bearing financial instruments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income using the effective interest rate method except for interest and
commissions on non performing credit facilities, which are recorded as interest and commission
in a suspense account.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of financial
assets or financial liabilities and allocating the interest income and expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate method is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial assets or financial liability, or
where appropriate a shorter period to the net carrying of the financial asset or the financial
liability. The Group estimates the cash flow considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments but does not consider future credit losses.

Commission income in general is recognized on accrual basis arises. Loan recoveries are
recorded upon receipt.

Dividends income
Dividends income from financial assets is recognized when the Group’s right to receive
dividends has been established (upon the general assembly resolution).
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Insurance Contract Revenue

Insurance premiums arising from insurance contract are recorded as revenue for the year (earned

insurance premiums) on the
insurance coverage periods.

basis of the maturities of time periods and in accordance with the
Insurance premiums from insurance contracts unearned at the date

of the consolidated statement of financial position are recorded as unearned insurance premiums

within other liabilities.

Leasing Contracts Revenue

The Group’s policy relating to leasing contracts is illustrated in note (4.C) below:

b. Direct Credit Facilities

The provision for the impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when it is obvious that
the amounts due to the Group cannot be recovered or when there is an objective evidence of the
existence of an event negatively affecting the future cash flows of the direct credit facilities and
the impairment amount can be estimated. The provision is recorded in the consolidated statement

of income.

Interest and commission on

non-performing credit facilities are suspended in accordance with

the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan and the applicable laws in the countries where the

Bank’ subsidiaries and branc

hes operate.

Impaired credit facilities, for which specific provisions have been taken, are written off by
charging the provision after all efforts have been made to recover the assets and after the proper
approval of the management. Any surplus in the provision are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income, while debts recoveries are recorded in income.

Non-performing direct credit facilities which are completely covered with provisions and

suspended interest, are trans

ferred to items off the consolidated statement of financial position.

In accordance with the Bank’s internal policies, after the proper approval of the management.

. Leasing contracts

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases:

1. The Group as a lessor:

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease. Initial direct

costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are

added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. The Group as a lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Company at their fair

value at the inception of the

lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum future lease

payments. The finance lease obligation is recorded at the same value. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance costs and reduction of the lease liabilities so as to achieve a

constant rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability. Finance costs are charged

directly to the consolidated statement of income.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

d. _Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the vear are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the date of the
consolidated financial statements using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
consolidated financial statement. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are

recorded in the consolidated

statement of income.
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Non-monetary items recorded at historical cost are translated according to the exchange
at fair value rate prevailing at the transaction date, using the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of evaluation.

Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities at fair
value denominated in foreign currency, such as equity shares, are recorded as part of the
change in the fair value using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of evaluation.

Upon consolidation, the financial assets and financial liabilities of the branches, sister
company and subsidiaries abroad are translated from the local currency to the reporting
currency at the average rates prevailing at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising from the revaluation of the net investment in
the branches and subsidiaries abroad are recorded in a separate item in consolidated
other comprehensive income items.

€. Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. When parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of fixed assets.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets using the straight-line
method, using the useful lives of the respective assets

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

Assets under construction is carried at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses and
is depreciated when the assets are ready for intended use using the same depreciation
rate of the related category with fixed assets.

Fixed assets are derecognized when disposed of or when no future benefits are expected
from their use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item (the difference between the net
realizable value and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income in the year that the assets were disposed.

o]

. _Intangible Assets
1. Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded at cost, and represents the excess amount aid to acquire or
purchase the investment in an associate or a subsidiary on the date of the transaction
over the fair value of the net assets of the associate or subsidiary at the acquisition date.
Goodwill resulting from the investment in a subsidiary is recorded as a separate item as
part of intangible assets, while goodwill resulting from the investment in an associated
company constitutes part of the investment in that company. The cost of goodwill is
subsequently reduced by and decline in the value of the investment.

Goodwill is distributed over the cash generating units for the purpose of testing the
impairment in its value.
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The value of goodwill is tested for impairment on the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Good will value is reduced when there is evidence that its value has
declined or the recoverable value of the cash generating units is less than book value.
The decline in the values is recoded in the consolidated statement of income as
impairment loss.

2. Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets acquired through merging are stated at fair value at the date of
acquisition, while other intangible assets (not acquired through merging) are recorded at
cost.

Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful
life. Intangible assets with definite useful economic lives are amortized over their useful
lives using the straight line method, and recorded as an expense in the consolidated
statement of income. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed in statement
income for impairment as of the consolidated financial statements date, and impairment
loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets resulting from the banks operations are not capitalized. They are rather
recorded in the consolidated statement of income in the same period.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the consolidated
financial statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the
impaired intangible assets are reassessed, and any adjustment is made in the subsequent
period.

g. Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a future date
continue to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements as a result of the
bank’s continuous control over these assets and as the related risk and benefits are
transferred to the Bank upon occurrence. They also continue to be measured in
accordance with the adopted accounting policies. Amounts received against these
contracts are recorded within liabilities under borrowed funds. The difference between
the sale price and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense amortized
over the contract period using the effective interest rate method.

Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements because the bank has no control
over such assets and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Bank upon
occurrence. Payments related to these contracts are recoded under deposits with banks
and other financial institutions or loans and advances in accordance with the nature of
each case. The difference between the purchase price and resale price is recoded as
interest revenue amortized over the life of the contract using the effective interest rate
method.

h. Capital

Cost of issuing or purchasing the Group’s shares are recorded in retained earnings net
of any tax effect related to these costs. If the issuing or purchase process has not been
completed, these costs are recorded as expenses in the consolidated statement of
income.
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Investments in Associates

Associates are those in which the Group exerts significant influence over the financial and
operating policy decisions, and in which the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for according to the equity method.

Transactions and balances between the Group and the associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's ownership in the associate.

Income Taxes

Income tax expenses represent current and deferred taxes for the year.

Income tax expense is measured on the basis of taxable income. Taxable income differs from
income reported in the consolidated financial statements, as the latter includes non-taxable
revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in subsequent years,
accumulated losses approved by tax authorities and items not accepted for tax purposes or
subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the enacted tax rates according to the prevailing laws,
regulations and instructions of countries where the Group operates.

Taxes expected to be incurred or recovered as a result of temporary timing differences between
the value of the assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the liability method , and according to the
rates expected to be enacted when it is anticipated that the liability will be settled or when tax
assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed on the date of the consolidated financial statements, and
reduced if it is expected that no benefit will arise from the deferred tax, partially or totally.

Financial Assets

Financial assets transactions are measured at the trade date at fair value net of direct transaction
cost except for costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of income. After that, all financial assets is measured either at amortized cost or at fair
value.

Financial Assets Classification

Financial assets at amortized cost

Debt instruments, including direct credit facilities, treasury bills and bonds, are measured at
amortized cost only if:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are recorded at fair value upon purchase plus acquisition
expenses (except debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss). Moreover, the issue
premium \ discount is amortized using the effective interest rate method, and recorded to interest
or in its account. Any allocations resulting from the decline in value of these investments leading
to the inability to recover the investment or part thereof are recorded, and any impairment is
registered in the consolidated statement of income.
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In case the business model objective changed to contradict with amortized cost conditions, the
Group should reclassify its financial instrument classified as amortized cost to be at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group might choose to classify debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria to
designate such financial asset as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria (as described above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria but are designated
as at FVTPL by the Group are measured at FVTPL,

In case the business model objectives changes and contractual cash flows meets the amortized
cost criteria, the Group should reclassify the debt instrument held at FVTPL to amortized cost.
Reclassification of debt instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition is not
allowed.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established
(upon the general assembly resolution).

Financial assets at fair value through other com rehensive income (FVTOCI

At initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading,.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

® on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not transferred to consolidated income
statement, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless
the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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Fair value

The closing price of quoted financial assets and derivatives in active markets represents
their fair value. When no quoted prices are available or when no active markets exist
for the financial instrument, the fair value is estimated by one of the following methods:

- Comparing the financial instrument with the fair value of another financial
instrument with similar terms and conditions;

- Discounting estimated future cash flows; or

- Using options pricing models.

The valuation methods aim at arriving at a fair value that reflects the expectations of
market participants, expected risks and expected benefits. When the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, financial assets are stated at cost / amortized cost.

The impairment in the financial assets measured at amortized cost is the difference
between the book value and the present value of the future cash flows discounted at the
original interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset at amortized cost is reduced by the
impairment loss through the impairment provision expense. Changes in the carrying
amount of the impairment provision are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

Financial derivatives

Financial derivatives (e.g. currency forward contracts, forward rate agreements, swaps
and option contracts) are recognized at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

1. Financial derivatives held for hedge purposes

Fair value hedge: Represents hedging for changes in the fair value of the Group’s assets
and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective fair value hedge are met, gains or
losses from changes in the fair value of financial derivatives are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. Changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities are also recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Cash flow hedge: Represents hedging for changes in the current and expected cash
flows of the Group’s assets and liabilities that affects the consolidated statement of
income. When the conditions for an effective cash flow hedge are met, gains or losses
from changes in the fair value of financial derivatives are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are reclassified to the statement of income in the period in
which the hedge transaction has an impact on the consolidated statement of income.

When the conditions for an effective hedge are not met, gains or losses from changes in
the fair value of financial derivatives are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

The ineffective portion is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Hedge for net investment in foreign entities when the conditions of the hedge for net
investment in foreign entities are met, fair value is measured for the hedging instrument
of the hedged net assets. In case of an effective relationship, the effective portion of the
loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and recorded in the consolidated statement of
income when the investment in foreign entities is sold. The ineffective portion is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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When the conditions of the effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting from the
change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

2. Financial derivatives for tradin

Financial derivatives held for trading are recognized at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position among "other assets" or "other liabilities" with changes
in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

n. Foreclosed assets
Such assets are those that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Group, and are
initially recognized among "other assets" at the foreclosure value or fair value
whichever is least.

At the date of the consolidated financial statements, foreclosed assets are revalued
individually (fair value less selling cost); any decline in fair value is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. Any subsequent increase in value is recognized only
to the extent that it does not exceed the previously recognized impairment losses.

0. _Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements as a result of past events, the obligation is likely to be
settled, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with the
prevailing rules and regulations in the countries in which the Group operates. The
expense for the year is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Indemnities
paid to employees are reduced from the provision.

P.__Segments Information: Segment business represents a group of assets and operations
shared to produce products or risk attributable services different from which related to

other segments.

Geographic sector linked to present the products or the services in a specific economic
environment attributable for risk and other income different from which related to other
sectors work in other economic environment.

gq. _Assets under Managements

These represent the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers, but do
not represent part of the Bank’s assets. The fees and commissions on managing these
accounts are taken to the consolidated statement of income. Moreover, a provision is
taken for the decline in the value of capital-guaranteed portfolios managed on behalf of
its customers.

r. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a legal right to offset
the recognized amounts, and the Group intends to either settle them on a net basis or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

s. _Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with central banks and balances
with banks and financial institutions maturing within three months, less restricted funds
and balances owing to banks and financial institutions maturing within three months.

=25 .



5. Accounting Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of the accounting
policies require the Group’s management to perform assessments and assumptions that
affect the amounts of financial assets, financial liabilities, fair value reserve and to disclose
contingent liabilities. Moreover, these assessments and assumptions affect revenues,
expenses, provisions, and changes in the fair value shown in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income and owners’ equity. In particular, this requires the Group’s
management to issue significant judgments and assumptions to assess future cash flow
amounts and their timing. Moreover, the said assessments are necessarily based on
assumptions and factors with varying degrees of consideration and uncertainty. In addition,
actual results may differ from assessments due to the changes resulting from the conditions
and circumstances of those assessments in the future.

Management believes that the assessments adopted in the consolidated financial statements
are reasonable. The details are as follows:

A provision for non-performing loans is taken on the bases and estimates approved by
management in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The outcome of these bases and estimates is compared against the provisions that
should be taken under the instructions of the regulatory authorities, through which the
Bank branches and subsidiary companies operate. Moreover, the strictest outcome that
conforms with the (IFRSs) is used.

Impairment loss for foreclosed assets is booked after a sufficient and recent evaluation
of the acquired properties has been conducted by approved surveyors. The impairment
loss is reviewed periodically.

The fiscal year is charged with its portion of income tax expenditures in accordance
with the regulations, laws, and accounting standards. Moreover, deferred tax assets and
liabilities and the income tax provision are recorded.

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and
intangible assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and amortization
based on the general condition of these assets and the assessment of their useful
economic lives expected in the future. Impairment loss is taken to the consolidated
statement of income.

A provision is set for lawsuits raised against the Group. This provision is based to an
adequate legal study prepared by the Group’s legal advisor. Moreover, the study
highlights potential risks that the Group may encounter in the future. Such legal
assessments are reviewed periodically.

Management frequently reviews financial assets stated at fair value or at cost to estimate
any impairment in their value. The impairment amount is taken to the consolidated
statement of income for the year.

Fair value hierarchy

The level in the fair value hierarchy is determined and disclosed into which the fair
value measurements are categorized in their entirety, segregating fair value
measurements in accordance with the levels defined in IFRS. The difference between
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements represents whether inputs are observable
and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, which may require judgment and a
careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including consideration of
factors specific to the asset or liability.
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6. _Cash and Balances with Central Banks

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

Cash in vaults 416 874 455 445
Balances with central banks:

- Current accounts 2120 805 2173 468
- Time and notice 3256 190 4392724
- Mandatory cash reserve 1362777 1 835 107
- Certificates of deposit 652 697 615637
Total 7 809 343 9 472 381

- Except for the mandatory cash reserve, there are no restricted balances at Central Banks,

- There are no balances and certificates of deposit maturing after three months as of December 31,2016 and 2015

7.__Balances with Banks and Financial Institutions
The details of this item are as follows:

Local banks and financial institutions

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Current accounts 2522 -
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 261 403 57 810
Total 263 925 57 810
Abroad banks and financial institutions December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Current accounts 2714 289 1 452 094
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 1643 967 1482 499
Total 4 358 256 2934593
Total balances with banks and financial institutions Local and Abroad 4622 181 2992 403
- There are no non interest bearing balances as of December 31, 2016 and 20135,
- Restricted balances amounted to USD 800 Million as of December 31,2016 (there are no
restricted balances as of December 31 ,2015).
8. _Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions
The details of this item are as follows:
Local banks and financial institutions December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 20736 =
Time deposits maturing afler one year 21150 4
41 886 -
December 31,
Abroad banks and financial institutions 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 97772 88 176
Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 2291 4594
Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before a year 23 281 6 248
Time deposits maturing after one year 10 888 -
Total 134232 99 018
Total deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions Local and Abroad 176 118 99 018

- There are no restricted balances as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,



9. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills and Government bonds 352284 423 445
Corporate bonds 274 404 331 131
Loans and advances 29 624 29 624
Corporate shares 15 781 19918
Mutual funds 26423 27 862
Total 698 516 831 980

10. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Quoted shares 258 920 256 776
Un-quoted shares 211992 222 262
Total 470 912 479 038

* Cash dividends from investments above amounted to USD 7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016

(USD 5.4 million as of December 31, 2015).

* Realized losses transferred from investment revaluation reserve to retained earnings amounted to USD (680) thousand
and the minority interest share from these realized losses was USD (358) Thousand as of December 31, 2016

(Realized gains transferred from investment revaluation reserve to retained earnings amounted to USD 31 thousand and
there is no share for the minority interest from these realized gains as of December 31, 2015).
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The details of movement on the provision for impairment of direct credit facilities at amortized cost are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment losses charged to income

Used from provision (written off or transferred to off consolidated
statement of financial position) *

Surplus in provision transferred to statement of income
Adjustments during the year
Translation adjustments

Balance at the End of the Year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment losses charged to income

Used from provision (written off or transferred to off consolidated
statement of financial position) *

Surplus in provision transferred to statement of income
Adjustments during the year
Translation adjustinents

Balance at the End of the Year

December 31, 2016
Corporates The total
Consumer Banks and  Government includes
Banking Syl and Financial  and Public Total  oovementon
mall an . -
Medium Large Institutions Sector loans provision
as follows:
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
171143 134135 902 901 1353 2751 1212283 16 847
18 412 22179 210904 - 1878 253373 2507
(5617) (6173) (31216) - - (43 006) ( 88)
(15 176) (9932) (47077) ( 950) (1182) (74317) (4932)
1624 (4 306) 12 623 - ( 94) 9847 (1947)
(12819) (6 780) (28 865) (5 (1212) (49 681) (13)
157 567 129123 1019270 398 2141 1308499 12374
December 31, 2015
Corporates
Banksand  Government The i
Constiimer Financial and Public Total techides
Banking Small and N movement on
Medium Large Institutions Sector the real - estates
loans provision
as follows:
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
164 912 121 681 992 037 1256 2117 1282003 17 810
16 209 19910 53177 154 876 90 326 2297
( 744) (4732) (59 230) - - (64 706) (14)
(9089) (8607) (39557) (22) ( 160) (57 435) (2219)
3776 10 483 (8275) - 20 6004 ( 939)
(3921) (4 600) (35251) ( 35) ( 102) (43 909) ( 88)
171 143 134 135 902 901 1353 2751 1212283 16 847

- There are no provisions no longer required as a result of settlement or repayment, transferred to non-performing direct credit facilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

- Impairment is assessed based on individual customer accounts.

* Non-performing direct credit facilities transferred to off consolidated statement of financial

million as of December 31, 2015) noting that these non-performing direct credit facilities are fully covered by set provisions and suspended interest.

-3 -
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The details of movement on interest and commissions in suspense are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest and commission suspended during the year

Interest and commission in suspense scttled (written off or
ferred to off. lidated of financial position )

Recoveries
Adjustments during the year
Translation adjustments

Balance at the End of the Year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest and commuission suspended during the year

Interest and commission in suspense settled (written off or
d to off l2d: of financial position )

Recoveries
Adjustments during the year
Translation adjustments

Balance at the End of the Year

_ December 31, 2016

Classification of direct credit facilities at amortized cost based on the geographical and economic sectors as follows:

Economic Sector

Consumer Banking

Industry and mining
Constructions

Real - Estates

Trade

Agriculture

Tourism and Hotels
Transportations

Shares

General Services

Banks and Financial Institutions
Government and Public Sector

Net Direct Credit Facilities at amortized Cost

The total includes
Corporates interest and
Banks and AT
Consumer " Government and commission in
. Financial " Total
Banking Instituti Public Sector suspense movement
nstitutions
on real - estates
Small and Medium Large loans as follows:
USD ‘000 USD '000 USD ‘000 USD '000 USD ‘000 USD '000 USD '000
69 626 91491 253 632 4499 - 419 248 11557
16 906 14 532 57 839 961 - 90238 3816
( 938) {9091) (17738) - - {27767) { 492)
{5 366) (2798) (2267) - - (10431 (3683)
947 751 835 - - 2533 -
(1163) (1236) (9 065) - - (11 464) (2
80012 93 649 283 236 5460 - 462 357 11 196
December 31,2015
The total includes
Corporates Banks and interest and
Cansumer Government and commission in
o, Financial . Total
g Instituti Public Sector suspentse movement
nstitutions
on real - estates
Small and Medium Large loans as follows:
USD ‘000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
60515 93016 2371177 3739 - 394 447 12 849
13226 10725 55 589 760 - 80 300 2975
(1302) (9514) (21992) - - (32808) ( 299)
{3907 (3137 (5219) - - (12263) {1805)
1755 1242 (3482) - - ( 485) (2142)
( 661) ( 841 (8441) - - (9943) (21
69 626 91491 253632 4499 - 419 248 11 557
. . December 31, December 31,
Inside Jordan Qutside Jordan 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
2434179 2520822 4955 001 4678011
956 971 3078872 4035843 4438773
229 557 1753 056 1982613 1861 483
365 336 1358298 1723634 1710773
1017 906 2690910 3708 816 621191
47 848 112059 159 907 164 038
197 545 421 455 619 000 626 032
145 837 521257 667 094 752236
2744 3014 5758 67 046
476 344 225] 568 2727912 2 866 054
16 871 50 529 107 400 191382
111417 1093 726 1205 143 1203 968
6002 555 15 895 566 21898121 22 180987
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12. Other financial assets at amortized cost

The details of this item are as follows:
December 31,

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills 2089 708 2731740
Government bonds and bonds guaranteed by the government 3932816 4492 258
Corporate bonds 1 645573 1 808 678
Less: Provision for impairment (27 142) (28967)
Total 7 640 955 9 003 709

Analysis of bonds based on interest nature:
December 31,

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Floating interest rate 777918 602 196
Fixed interest rate 6 863 037 8401513
Total 7 640 955 9 003 709
Analysis of financial assets based on market quotation:
December 31,
Financial assets quoted in the market: 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills 250536 753 022
Govemnment bonds and bonds guaranteed by the government 1019 559 1318234
Corporate bonds 1410604 1 660 382
Total 2 680 699 3731638

December 31,

Financial assets unquoted in the market: 2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills 1839172 1978 718
Government bonds and bonds guaranteed by the government 2913 257 3174024
Cormporate bonds 207 827 119 329
Total 4960 256 5272071
Grand Total 7 640 955 9 003 709

The details of movement on the provision for impairment of other financial assets at amortized cost are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015

USD '000 USD '000
Balance at the beginning of the year 28 967 29 520

Impairment losses charged to income - -

Used from provision - -
Translation adjustments (1825) ( 553)
Balance at the end of the year 27 142 28 967

During the year ended December 31, 2016 certain financial assets at amortized cost amounted to USD 424.5 million were
sold (USD 268.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2015).
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14._Fixed Assets

The details of this item are as follows:

Furniture, Computers and

Land Buildings Fixtures ant:l Commfmicntion \Il\: :;:l:s Other Total
Equig Equip
Historical Cost: USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Balance as of January 1, 2015 80 589 376 966 186 245 117 718 14 397 100 602 876 517
Additions 30 18 999 19 207 16 333 1138 15748 71455
Disposals ( 419) (13057) (4511) (5601) ( 591) (14719) (38 898)
Adjustments during the year - (1180) 2082 8 435 - (9387) ( 50)
Translation Adjustments (2219) (9694) (1969) (4011) ( 496) (4048) (22437)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 77981 372034 201 054 132 874 14 448 88 196 886 587
Additions - 53539 8945 22 460 1479 11089 97512
Disposals (2741) (21 186) (3680) (8230) ( 968) (5908) (42713)
Adjustments during the year - 31 6094 12 - (6 106) 31
Translation Adjustments (1346) (12536) (1749) ( 283) ( 650) (6790) (23 354)
Balance at December 31, 2016 73 894 391 882 210 664 146 833 14 309 80 481 918 063
Accumulated Depreciation :
Balance as of January [, 2015 - 116 760 133 791 94 803 10 589 54 707 410 650
Depreciation charge for the year - 12 499 15651 11957 1 496 10438 52041
Disposals - (1114) (2333) (4 465) ( 501) (9832) (18 245)
Adjustments during the year - ( 562) 1304 6 649 3 (7328) 66
Translation adjustments - (2501) ( 1366) (2904) ( 266) (2332) (9369)
Balance as of December 31,2015 - 125 082 147 047 106 040 11321 45 653 435143
Depreciation charge for the year - 9873 14 198 13429 1234 8927 47661
Disposals - (5072) (3 526) (7203) ( 1090) (1884) (18775)
Adjustments during the year - 31 1339 (31 - (1308) 31
Translation adjustments - (2724) ( 999) (2905) ( 369) (2633) (9630)
Balance at December 31, 2016 - 127 190 158 059 109 330 11 096 48 755 454 430
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2016 73 894 264 692 52 605 37503 33 31726 463 633
Net Book Value as of December 31, 2015 77981 246 952 54 007 26 834 3127 42 543 451 444

* The cost of fully depreciated fixed assets amounted to USD 242.5 million as of December 31.2016 (USD 212.4 million as of December 31, 2015).
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15. Other Assets

The details of this item are as follows:

Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Foreclosed assets *

Items in transit

Intangible assets **

Other miscellaneous assets

Total

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

184 568 187 227
93 572 122 408
50041 58518
1746 24 611
20442 16 055
121 834 91 660
472 203 500 479

* The Central Bank of Jordan instructions require a disposal of these assets during a maximum period of two years

from the date of foreclosure.

* The details of movement on foreclosed assets are as follows:

2016
Land Buildings Other Total
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Balance at the beginning of the year 14 230 36 601 7 687 58518
Additions 1695 3655 - 5350
Disposals (1387 (2211) (7191) (10789)
Provision for impairment ( 473) (2287) - (2765
Impairment losses charged to income - - (141) ( 141)
Impairment loss - returned to profit 3 90 - 93
Translation adjustments (23) (202) - ( 225)
Balance at the end of the year 14 040 35646 355 50 041
2015
Land Buildings Other Total
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Balance at the beginning of the year 38 699 33 808 7 880 80387
Additions 2715 5421 - 8136
Disposals (26 631) (932) (24) (27587
Provision for impairment ( 279) (1548) - (1827)
Impairment losses charged to income ( 274) ( 147) (169) ( 590)
Impairment loss - returned to profit - 141 - 141
Translation adjustments - ( 142) - ( 142)
Balance at the End of the Year 14 230 36 601 7 687 58 518
** The details of movement on intangible assets are as follows:
December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

Balance at the beginning of the year 16 055 14 478

Additions 13 642 9635

Disposals ( 769) (52)

Amortization charge for the year (7112) (7321)

Adjustment during the yeat and translation adjustments (1374) ( 685)

Balance at the End of the Year 20 442 16 055
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16. Deferred Tax Assets

The details of this item are as follows :

Items attributable to deferred tax assets are as follows: 2016
Adjustments
thl:,:;::lc:n‘:;g Amounts Amounts l;:;i: En‘:e Balance at the Deferred Tax
of the Year Added Released Translation End of the Year
Adjustments
USD '000 USD '000 USD'000  USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized cost 82 366 62 781 (24 185) (4676) 116 286 27 117
End-of-Service indemnity 58269 9445 (10523) - 57 191 17 412
Interest in suspense 12 509 12074 (6705) - 17 878 3810
Other 70177 33584 (12291) ( 1090) 90 380 25 051
Total 223 321 117 884 (53 704) ( 5 766) 281 735 73 390
2015
Adjustments
th[:al;::::n::ng Amounts Amounts [\)(l;:i: i::e Balance at the Deferred Tax
of the Year Added Released Translation End of the Year
Adjustments
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000  USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized cost 94 846 17 865 (19716) (10 629) 82 366 20778
End-of-Service indemnity 59 057 6910 (7 669) (29 58 269 17 591
Interest in suspense 10 610 6 385 {4486) - 12 509 2780
Other 55191 29 844 (1910) (12 948) 70177 17 480
Total 219 704 61 004 (33 781) (23 606) 223 321 58 629
* Deferred tax results from temporary timing differences of the provisions not deducted for tax purposes in the current year or previous
years. This is calculated according to the regulations of the countries where the Group operates. The Group will benefit from these
amounts in the near future.
The details of movements on deferred tax assets are as follows:
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Balance at the beginning of the year 58 629 58932
Additions during the year 30461 16 148
Amortized during the year (14 294) (11 620)
Adjustments during the year and translation adjustments (1 406) (4831)
Balance at the end of the year 73 390 58 629
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19. Cash Margin

The details of this item are as follows: December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Against direct credit facilities at amortized cost 1 907 001 1877 034
Against indirect credit facilities 648 657 553475
Against margin trading 1886 9327
Other cash margins 3882 3254
Total 2 561 426 2 443 090

20. Borrowed Funds

The details of this item are as follows: December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
From Central Banks * 30434 11285
From banks and financial institutions ** 240 751 64 460
Total 271 185 75 745

Analysis of borrowed funds according to interest nature is as follows:

December 31,
2016 2018
USD '000 USD '000
Floating interest rate 83437 70 099
Fixed interest rate 187 748 5646
Total 271185 75 745

* During 2013, Arab Bank (Jordan branches) signed a loan agreement with the Central Bank of Jordan amounting to USD 5.6 million,
for the duration of 15 years of which 5 years are grace period and with an interest rate of (2.5%) for the year 2013 and a floating interest
rate of (1.8%+LIBOR 6 months) for the years after 2013. The agreement aims fo support SMEs and Extra Small Companies. The loan is
repaid semi-annually, with installments in March and September of each year. The Balance of the loan as of December 31, 2016
amounted to USD 5.6 million (USD 5.6 million as of December 31, 2015).

* During 2014, Arab Bank (Jordan branches) signed a loan agreement with the Central Bank of Jordan amounting to USD 3.9 million,
for the duration of 10 years of which 3 years are grace period and with a fixed interest rate of 2.5%. The agreement aims to support
SMEs and Extra Small Companies. The loan is repaid semi-annually, with installments in March and September of each year. The
Balance of the loan as of December 31, 2016 amounted to USD 3.9 million (USD 2 Million as of December 31,2015)

* During 2015 and 2016, Arab Bank (Jordan branches) granted loans against medium term advances from the Central Bank of Jordan in
the amount of USD 18 million with fixed interest rate equal to the discount rate disclosed on the grant day afler deducting 2%, The
advances are repaid in accordance with customers monthly installments which starts on October 2016 and ends on August 2021, these
advances amounted USD 18 million as of December 31, 2016. (USD 1.7 million as of December 31, 2015)

* During 2016, Arab Bank (Jordan branches) signed a loan agreement with the Central Bank of Jordan amounting to USD 5.1 million,
for the duration of 15 years of which 5 years are grace period and with a floating interest rate of (1.85%+LIBOR 6 months). The
agreement aims to support SMEs and Extra Small Companies. The loan is repaid semi-annually, with installments in March and
September of each year. The Balance of the loan as of December 31, 2016 amounted to USD 2.8 million,

** During 2016, Arab Bank (Jordan Branches) signed a loan agreement with National Bank of Abu Dhabi amounting to USD 75
million, for the duration of 2 years and with a floating interest rate of (2% + LIBOR 3 months). The interest will be paid in four
installments during the year and the loan will be paid at the end of the term. As of December 3 1, 2016 the balance of the loan amounted
to USD 75 million,

** During 2016, Arab Bank Bahrain branches borrowed amounts from banks and financial institutions with fixed interest rate of
(2.85%), the balance as of December 31, 2016 amounted to USD 102.7 million and the first contract matures in January 19, 2017 and the
last one matures in March 9, 2017.

** Arab Tunisian Bank borrowed amounts from banks and financial institutions, as well issued syndicated term loans, the balance
to USD 63.1 million as of December 31, 2016 (USD 64.5 million as of December 31, 2015) whereas the lowest interest rate is (0.25%)
and the highest is (6.94%) and the last maturity date is on May 19, 2032, as per the following details :

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Loans maturing within one year 8124 10 009
Loans maturing after | year and less than 3 years 16 655 17078
Loans maturing after 3 years 38 340 37373
Total 63 119 64 460
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21, Provision for Income Tax

The details of this item are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Income tax expense
Income tax paid

Balance at the end of the year

Income tax expense charged to the consolidated statement of income consists of the following:

Income tax expense for the year
Deferred tax assets for the year
Amortization of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities for the year
Amortization of deferred tax liabilities

Total

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
235918 235248
275951 279 841
(269 492) (279171)
2423717 235918
December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
275951 279 841
(29 407) (16012)
13 823 11584
123 2285
(2341) ( 493)
258 149 277208

The banking sector income tax rate in Jordan is 35%, while the income tax rate in the countries where the Group has branches and
subsidiaries is ranging between zero to 37% as of December 31,2016 and 2015.

- The companies and branches of Arab bank Group have reached a recent tax settlements ranging between 2015 as for Arab Bank United
Arab Emirates and Arab Sudanese Bank Limited and 2010 as for Arab Bank Egypt.

22. Other Provisions

The details of this item are as follows:

End-of-service indemnity
Legal cases
Other

Total

End-of-service indemnity
Legal cases
Other

Total

23. Other Liabilities

The details of this item are as follows:

Accrued interest payable

Notes payable

Interest and commission received in advance
Accrued expenses

Other miscellaneous liabilities *

Total

2016
Utilized or Adjustments
Balance atthe  Additions during the Balance at
. . Transferred  Returned
Beginning of  during the during the  to Income Year and the End of
the Year Year Yefr Translation the Year
Adjustments
USD '000 USD '000  USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
114987 16 526 (15082) ( 747) (2266) 113418
7882 11331 (122) ( 653) (75) 18363
22 366 104 939 ( 571) (18) 1298 128014
145235 132 796 (15775) (1418) (1043) 259 795
2015
- Adjustments
Balance atthe  Addition Utilized or during the Balance at
P . Transferred Returned
Beginning of  during the during the  to Income Year and the End of
the Year Year 8 Translation the Year
Year .
Adjustments
USD '000 USD'000  USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
114354 12485 (12294) ( 276) 718 114987
5767 3507 ( 924) ( 584) 116 7882
24082 1544 (1757) ( 466) (1037) 22366
144 203 17 536 (14 975) (1326) ( 203) 145235
December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
122 806 133 561
185334 171 873
68 860 101 387
59 864 78277
635264 1142156
1072128 1627254

* This items represents mainly legal contingencies ( Note 57).
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24, Deferred Tax Liabilities

Items attributable to deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Investment revaluation reserve
Other

Total

Investment revaluation reserve

Other
Total

The details of snovements on deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year
Amortized during the year

Adjustments during the year and translation adjustments

Balance at the end of the year

2016
Adjustments
Balaflce at the Amounts Amounts during the Balance at Deferred
Beginning of Added Released Year and the End of
the Year ¢ Translation the Year =
Adjustments
USD '000 USD '000 USD ‘000 USD '000 USD 000 USD '000
24782 - (18323) ( 204) 6255 -
11922 3188 (6789) (119) 8202 1276
36 704 3188 (25112) ( 323) 14457 1276
2015
Adjustments
Balance at the during the Balance at
Beginning of A:::n;s ::'Iz:::t: Year and the End of Defe;red
the Year ¢ ¢ Translation the Year X
Adjustments
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
31422 - (4322) (2318) 24 782 8 604
7227 6681 ( 1986) - 11922 3499
38 649 6 681 (6 308) (2318) 36704 12103
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
12103 11924
127 2285
(10 946) (2 006)
(8 ( 100)
1276 12103

I




25. Share Capital and Premium

a . Share Capital amounted to USD 926.6 million distributed to 640.8 million shares as of December 31, 2016
(Arab Bank Plc General Assembly in its extraordinary meeting held on March 26, 2015 approved to increase
the Group capital by USD 100.4 million, to become USD 926.6 million distributed to 640.8 million shares.
The legal procedures have been completed with the Ministry of Industry and Trade on April 5, 2015 and with
Jordan Securities Commission on April 21, 2015).

b. Share premium amounted to USD 1225.7 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

26. Statutory Reserve

Statutory reserve amounted to USD 798.4 million as of December 31, 2016 (USD 753.1 million as of December
31, 2015) according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan and Companies Law and it can not be
distributed to the shareholders of the banks.

27. Voluntary Reserve

The voluntary reserve amounted to USD 977.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. This reserve is used
for purposes determined by the Board of Directors, and the General Assembly has the right to distribute it in
whole or part thereof to shareholders as dividends.

28. General Reserve

The general reserve amounted to USD 1141.8 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. This reserve is used
for purposes determined by the Board of Directors, and the General Assembly has the right to distribute it in
whole or part thereof to shareholders as dividends.

29. General Banking Risks Reserve

The general banking risk reserve amounted to USD 363.5 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. It is
available for use in accordance with certain procedures, including the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan,
only when the amount of that reserve exceeds the minimum amount set or required according to the instructions
of the relevant banking authorities.
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30. Foreign currency translation reserve

The details of this item are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition (disposal) during the year transferred to other comprehensive income

Balance at the end of the year

31._Investment Revaluation Reserve

The details of this item are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Change in fair value during the year
Net realized loss transferred to retained earnings

Balance at the End of the Year

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
(284 609) (122751)
(118073) ( 161 858)
(402 682) ( 284 609)
December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
(260 621) (219278)
(7731) (41312)
680 30
(267 672) (260 621)

* Investment revaluation reserve is stated net of deferred tax liabilities in the amount of 0 as of December 31, 2016 (USD 8.6 million as

of December 31, 2015).

32._Retained Earnings and Non-controlling interests

The movement of retained earnings are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year Attributable to Shareholders of the Bank

1 Tiint) £

T reserve

red to retained earnings
Dividends paid *

Transferred to statutory reserve

Adjustments during the year

Increase in Capital (Stock Dividends)

Balance at the end of the year *»

* Arab Bank plc Board of Directors recommended a 30% of par value as cash dividend
2016, This proposal is subject to the approval of the General Assembl

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

1502 867 1315525
522 187 430 830
( 680) 31
(231277) (101 772)
(45378) (40 343)
(9494) (1012)
- ( 100 392)
1738 225 1502 867

, equivalent to USD 271.1 million, for the year
ly of shareholders. (The General Assembly of the Arab Bank plcin

it's extraordinary meeting held on March 31,2016 approved the recommendation of the banks Board of Directors to distribute 25% of par
value as cash dividend, equivalent to USD 225.9 million, for the year 2015),

**Retained eamnings include restricted deferred tax assets in the amount of USD 73.4 million, as well as unrealized
gains from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the amount of USD 1.7 million. Restricted
retained carnings that cannot be distributed or otherwise utilized except only under certain circumstances, as a
result of the adoption of certain International Accounting Standards, amounted to USD 2.7 million as of

December 31, 2016.

1d 12,

d eamings i an unr
IFRS 9 as of December 31, 2016.

s R

d loss in the amount of USD (109.1) million due to the effect of the adoption of

** The Use of an amount of USD (267.7) million as of December 3 1,2016 which represent the negative investments revaluation reserve
balance is restricted according to Jordan Securitics Commission instructions.

The details of non-controlling interests are as follows:

Arab Tunisian Bank
Arab Bank Syria

Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company plc

Total

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD ‘000 USD '000
Share of non- Share of non- Share of non- Share of non-
Non-controlling .. controlling Non-controlling  controlling controlling
. o controlling interests . . o . .
interests % of net assets interests of net  interests % interests of net  interests of net
profits assets _profits
35.76 89 044 10434 35.76 96 494 12 543
48.71 18 983 (1678) 48.71 17992 ( 2 885)
50.00 14 340 1723 50.00 14 538 1635
122 367 10479 129 024 11293
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33. Interest Income

The details of this item are as follows:

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost *

Central banks

Banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other financial assets at amortized cost

Total

Discounted bills
Overdrafts

Loans and advances
Real estate loans
Credit cards

Total

Discounted bills
Overdrafts

Loans and advances
Real estate loans

Credit cards

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
1298 529 1185 767
62923 72 405
17 039 3545
12 908 32062
474 436 522116
1 865 835 1 815 895
* The details of interest income earned on direct credit facilities at amortized cost are as follows:
2016
Consumer Corporates Bafnks a.nd Governmtfnt
Banking Smalland liltl:::t:::s al‘s(:;:':IIc ol
Medium
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
4631 11 677 23 391 3155 36 42 890
7723 69 660 216 335 157 16 954 310 829
216 848 80 143 448 685 3390 50275 799 341
119273 6618 3954 - - 129 845
15624 - - - - 15624
364 099 168 098 692 365 6 702 67 265 1298 529
2015
Consumer Corporates l;fnks a.nd Governme'nt
Medium
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
6438 16 968 24077 3348 10 50 841
8195 58372 187 647 258 16 103 270 575
203 096 74 720 413 754 3129 33014 727713
109 191 5888 5050 - - 120 129
16 509 - - - - 16 509
343 429 155 948 630 528 6735 49 127 1185 767

Total
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34. Interest Expense
The details of this item are as follows:

2016 2015
USD '000  USD '000
Customer deposits * 636 423 621 703
Banks' and financial institutions' deposits 48 254 39 664
Cash margins 35356 35550
Borrowed funds 6 089 3 096
Deposit insurance fees 25195 24 744
Total 751 317 724 757
* The details of interest expense paid on customer deposits are as follows:
2016
Consumer Corporates Governme-nt
Banking Sll\nllall‘and Large a“geft‘::.l'c Total
edium
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD '000
Current and demand 18 771 2786 11 049 5035 37 641
Savings 31 963 3252 406 - 35621
Time and notice 250 629 27 187 160 192 86 631 524 639
Certificates of deposit 32097 544 2 849 3032 38 522
Total 333 460 33 769 174 496 94 698 636 423
2015
Consumer Corporates Governmt?nt
Banking Sllvnlall.and Large angelc)tl:)[:'hc Total
edium
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000  USD '000
Current and demand 11617 5443 12 503 5001 34 564
Savings 35092 2877 649 - 38618
Time and notice 265 248 29 197 127 427 74 948 496 820
Certificates of deposit 40 384 1243 4197 5877 51701
Total 352 341 38 760 144 776 85 826 621 703
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35. Net Commission Income

The details of this item are as follows:

2016 2015

USD '000 USD '000
Commission income:

- Direct credit facilities at amortized cost 94 443 97 153
- Indirect credit facilities 139 402 148 177
- Assets under management 13 337 12 792
- Other 100 005 89 748
Less: commission expense (31284) (28267)

Net Commission Income 315 903 319 603

36. Gains from Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
—————————enar aseis at rair value Lhrough Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

2016
e oot Dhidends o
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills and bonds 2101 3556 - 5657
Companies shares - (2030) 1375 ( 655)
Mutual funds - 145 - 145
Total 2101 1671 1375 5147
2015
e oo, Diients T
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Treasury bills and bonds 4155 8318 - 12 473
Companies shares - ( 645) 1427 782
Mutual funds - 1060 - 1 060
Total 4155 8733 1427 14 315
37. Other Revenue
The details of this item are as follows:
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
Revenue from customer services 16 966 17 241
Safe box rent 4 889 4313
Gains from derivatives (1077 133
Miscellaneous revenue 66 104 28 379
Total 86 882 50 066
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38. Employees' Expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Salaries and benefits
Social security
Savings fund
Indemnity compensation
Medical
Training
Allowances
Other
Total

39. Other Expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Occupancy
Office
Services
Fees
Information technology
Other administrative expenses
Legal Expenses *
Total
* (Disclosure 57).

40. Financial Derivatives

The details of this item are as follows:

Forward contracts
Interest rate swaps
Foreign currency forward contracts

Total

- 48 .

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
317 495 320237
31254 30 879
4 468 4731
4034 7 449
12 478 11753
3053 3 144
54 585 51246
11738 11213
439 105 440 652
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
73 840 74 570
63 444 62 992
41310 55 340
12322 12 305
41 431 41 263
106 050 51 768
- 349 000
338397 647 238

December 31,

2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000
292837 267 101
1925334 2534323
6213 070 5120 808
8 431241 7922232
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The details of financial derivatives are as follows:

December 31, 2015
Positive . Total Notional Amounts by Maturity
Negative .
Fair Fair Value Notional From 3
Value F el Amount Within 3 From 1 Year More than 3
months to 1
Months to 3 Years Years
Years
USD'000 USD'000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Forward contracts 1830 1789 267 101 221979 39 580 5542 -
Interest rate swaps 26 128 29 666 1066 249 59957 376 144 470 355 159 793
Foreign currency forward contracts 23 547 8022 4 492 255 3956 994 535261 - -
Derivatives held for trading 51 505 39477 5 825 605 4238930 950 985 475 897 159 793
Forward contracts - - - - . - -
Interest rate swaps 6730 11 685 1428 505 60 886 494 799 614 708 258 112
Foreign currency forward contracts - - 109 687 103 335 6352 - -
Derivatives held for fair value hedge 6730 11 685 1538 192 164 221 501 151 614 708 258 112
Forward contracts - - - - - - -
Interest rate swaps - 2543 39 569 - 10 953 7302 21314
Foreign currency forward contracts - - 518 866 505513 13353 - -
Derivatives held for cash flow hedge - 2543 558 435 505513 24 306 7302 21314
Total 58235 53708 7922232 4908 664 1476 442 1097 907 439 219

The notional amount represents the value of the transactions at year-end and does not refer to market or credit risks.

41. Concentration of Assets and Revenues and Capital Expenditures According to the Geographical Distribution

The Group undertakes its banking activities through its branches in Jordan and abroad. The following are the details of the distribution of assets, revenues and

capital expenditures inside and outside Jordan:

Revenues

Assets

Capital Expenditures

Inside Jordan Outside Jordan Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
USD'000 uSb'000 uUsSD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000
465 189 474 129 1461223 1434 231 1926 412 1908 360
13 301 716 12977319 34 158 675 36 067 274 47 460 391 49 044 593
23420 22428 74 092 49 027 97512 71 455
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42.

Business Segments

The Group has an integrated group of products and services dedicated to serve the Group’s
customers and constantly developed in response to the ongoing changes in the banking
business environment, and related state-of-the-art tools.

The following is a summary of these groups’ activities stating their business nature and
future plans:

1. Corporate and Institutional Banking

This group provides banking services and finances the following: corporate sector, private
projects, foreign trading, small and medium sized projects, and banks and financial
institutions.

2. Treasury Group
This group is considered a source of financing for the Group, in general, and for the

strategic business units, in particular. It steers the financing of the Group, and manages
both the Group’s cash liquidity and market risks.

Moreover, this group is responsible for the management of the Group’s assets and liabilities
within the frame set by the Assets and Liabilities Committee.

This group is considered the main source in determining the internal transfer prices within
the Group’s business unit, in addition to being a central unit for the financial organization
and main dealing in the following;

Foreign exchange.

Foreign exchange derivatives.
Money market instruments.
Certificates of deposit.
Interest rate swaps.

Other various derivatives.

3. Consumer Banking
This group provides banking services to individuals and high-networth Elite customers,

and endeavors to meet their financial services needs using the best methods, through
effective distribution channels, and a variety of product services. Moreover, this group is in
direct and close contact with the customers in order to provide them with timely and
continuous services through different electronic channels, such as direct phone calls, the
internet, and text messaging via cellular phones.
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Information about the Group's Business Segments

Total income

Net inter-segment interest income

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized

cost

Other provisions

Direct administrative expenses

Result of operations of segments

Indirect expenses on segments

Profit for the year before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the Year

Depreciation and amortization

Other information

Segment assets

Inter-segment assets

Investment in associates

TOTAL ASSETS

Segment liabilities

Owners equity

Inter-segment liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

Corporate Consumer Banking
ins ti::::onal Treasury - Other Total
Banking Elite Banking
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
856 221 551 506 (74 463) 218 306 374 842 1926 412
(87 349) (266 706) 209 570 144 485 - -
175 820 - 16 3220 - 179 056
61255 28 138 16414 25571 - 131378
128 383 17 464 25308 146 249 7052 324 456
403 414 239 198 93 369 187 751 367 790 1291522
226 780 71295 46 508 153 663 2461 500 707
176 634 167 903 46 861 34 088 365 329 790 815
36 528 46 694 14 656 11771 148 500 258 149
140 106 121 209 32205 22317 216 829 532 666
14 008 4133 3692 25828 - 47 661
17 583 136 18 394 509 2981 706 4107 610 1316422 44 383 383
- - 10 071 606 2918 446 4819643 -
- - - - 3077008 3077008
17 583 136 18394509 13 053 312 7 026 056 9213073 47 460 391
16 026 131 2141819 13053312 7 026 056 1048 537 39 295 855
- - - - 8164 536 8 164 536
1 557 005 16 252 690 - - - -
17 583 136 18394509 13 053 312 7 026 056 9213073 47 460 391
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Information about the Group's Business Segments

Total income

Net inter-segment interest income

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities at amortized cost

Other provisions
Direct administrative expenses
Result of operations of segments
Indirect expenses on segments
Profit for the year before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the Year
Depreciation and amortization
Other information
Segment assets
Inter-segment assets
Investment in associates

TOTAL ASSETS
Segment liabilities
Owners equity
Inter-segment liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

2015
Corporate Consumer Banking
insti::::onal Treasury Elite Retail Other Total
Banking Banking
USD '000 USD'000  USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
803 558 624 347 (/103 813) 189 406 394 862 1 908 360
(13604) (385 208) 218 527 180 285 - -
26 605 - ( 881) 7167 - 32891
7057 2185 1032 5936 - 16210
140 698 19 446 23 680 155957 356 368 696 149
615594 217 508 90 883 200 631 38494 1163110
198918 56 042 40 169 145 930 2723 443 782
416 676 161 466 50 714 54 701 35711 719 328
77059 48 886 18 485 18573 114 202 277 205
339617 112 580 32229 36128 (78 431) 442123
15322 4194 2192 30333 - 52041
18090366 20756491 2116580 4005 750 1159 116 46 128 303

- - 9 899 888 4049 621 5677642 -

- - - - 2916 290 2916290
18090366 20756491 12 016 468 8055371 9753 048 49 044 593
16 883 273 2336433 12016468 8055371 1737 467 41029012

- - - - 8015581 8015581

1207093 18420058 - - - -
18090366 20756491 12016 468 8055371 9753 048 49 044 593
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43. _Banking Risk Management
Arab Bank Group addresses the challenges of banking risks comprehensively through an

Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Framework. This framework is built in line with
leading practices, and is supported by a risk governance structure consisting of risk-related
Board Committees, Executive Management Committees, and three independent levels of
control.

As part of the risk governance structure of the Bank, and as the second level of control,
Group Risk Management is responsible for ensuring that the Bank has a robust system for
the identification and management of risk. Its mandate is to:

e  Establish risk management frameworks, policies and procedures for all types of risks
and monitor their implementation

¢ Develop appropriate risk measurement tools and models

¢ Assess risk positions against established limits

*  Monitor and report to Senior Management and the Board on a timely basis

e  Advise and promote risk awareness based on leading practices

a. _Credit Risk Management

Arab Bank maintains a low risk strategy towards the activities it takes on. This
combined with its dynamic and proactive approach in managing credit risk are key
elements in achieving its strategic objective of maintaining and further enhancing its
asset quality and credit portfolio risk profile. The conservative, prudent and well-
established credit standards, policies and procedures, risk methodologies and
frameworks, solid structure and infrastructure, risk monitoring and control enable the
Bank to deal with the emerging risks and challenges with a high level of confidence
and determination. Portfolio management decisions are based on the Bank's business
strategy and risk appetite as reflected in the tolerance limits. Diversification is the
cornerstone for mitigating portfolio risks which is achieved through industry,
geographical and customer tolerance limits.

b. Geographic Concentration Risk

The Bank reduces the geographic concentration risk through distributing its operations
over various sectors and various geographic locations inside and outside the Kingdom.

Note (44-¢) shows the details of the geographical distribution of assets.

¢. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is defined by the Bank for International Settlements as the ability of a bank
to fund increases in assets and meet obligations as they come due, without incurring
unacceptable losses. Arab Bank has built a robust infrastructure of policies, processes
and people, in order to ensure that all obligations are met in a timely manner, under all
circumstances and without undue cost. The Bank uses a variety of tools to measure
liquidity risk in the balance sheet. These metrics help the Bank to plan and manage its
funding and help to identify any mismatches in assets and liabilities which may expose
the Bank to roll risk.

Note (47) shows the maturities of the assets and liabilities of the Bank.
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d. Market Risk
Market risk is defined as the potential for loss from changes in the value of the Group’s
portfolios due to movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity or
commodity prices. The three main activities that expose the Group to market risk are:
Money Markets, Foreign Exchange and Capital Markets, across the Trading and
Banking books.

Note (45) shows the details of market risk sensitivity analysis.

1. Interest Rate Risk:
Interest rate risk in the Group is limited, well managed, and continuously
supervised. A large proportion of the interest rate exposure is concentrated in the
short end of the yield curve, with durations of up to one year. Exposures of more
than one year are particularly limited. Interest rate risk is managed in accordance
with the policies and limits established by the High ALCO.

Note (46) shows the details of the interest rate risk sensitivity of the Group.

2. Capital Market Exposures:

Investments in capital markets instruments are subject to market risk stemming
from changes in their prices. Arab Bank Group’s exposure to this kind of risk is
limited due to its strong control over credit and interest rate risk. The equities
investment portfolio represents a very small percent of the Bank’s overall
investments.

3. Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange activity arises principally from customers' transactions. Strict
foreign exchange risk limits are set to define exposure and sensitivity tolerance for
trading in foreign exchange. The Bank hedges itself appropriately against potential
currency fluctuations in order to minimize foreign exchange exposure.

Note (48) shows the net positions of foreign currencies.

€. _Operational Risk

Operational risk is defined as the loss incurred by the Bank due to disorder in work
policies or procedures, personnel, automated systems, technological infrastructure, in
addition to external accidents. Such risk is managed through a comprehensive
framework, as part of the overall strengthening and continuous improvement of the
controls within the Group.
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44. Credit Risk

A. Gross exposure to credit risk (net of impairment provisions and interest in suspense and prior to collaterals

and other risk mitigations):

Credit risk exposures relating to items on the consolidated statement of financial position:

Balances with central banks
Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Consumer Banking
Small and Medium Corporate
Large Corporate
Banks and financial institutions
Government and public sector
Other financial assets at amortized cost

Other assets and financial derivatives - positive fair value

Total Credit Exposure related to items on the consolidated statement of financial
position:

Credit risk exposures relating to items off the consolidated statement of financial position:

Letters of credit
Acceptances

Letters of guarantees
Unused credit facilities

Total

Grand Total for Credit Exposure

December 31,
2016 2015
USD '000 USD '000

7392 469 9016 936
4622 181 2992 403
176 118 99018
656 312 784 200
21898 121 22 180 987
4955 001 4678011
2592108 2560370
13 038 469 13 547 256
107 400 191 382
1205 143 1203 968
7 640 955 9003 709
336 151 367 870
42 722 307 44445123
2156 159 2152393
653 158 688 359
11912937 12 813 870
4 940 006 5069773
19 662 260 20 724 395
62 384 567 65169 518

The table above shows the maximum limit of the bank credit risk as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 excluding collaterals or risks

mitigations.
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B. Classification of assets credit exposure based on risk degree.

Low risk
Acceptable risk
Due:
- Upto 30 days
- 31-60 days
Watch list
Non-performing:
- Substandard
- Doubtful
~ Problematic
Total

Less: interest and commission in suspense
Less: provision for impairment

Net

Low risk
Acceptable risk
Due:
- Upto 30 days
- 31 - 60 days
Watch list
Non-performing:
- Substandard
- Doubtful
- Problematic
Total

Less: interest and commission in suspense

Less: provision for impainment

Net

The credit risk exposures includes direct credit facilities at amortized cost, balances and de,

assets exposed to credit risk.

D, ber 31, 2016
Consumer Serporaies Bt}nks a'nd Government and
Banking S;\"‘l::ili:': Large l:;::t::il::ns Public Sector Total

USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD ‘000 USD '000 USD '000
953 663 1169 246 2119175 5117438 14 648 364 24 007 886
3992578 1519325 11 199 305 1407 180 445221 18 563 609
53129 23989 152 900 1127 2112 233257
43 405 9530 60 155 1127 1056 115273
9724 14 459 92 745 - 1056 117984
28 150 45033 276 249 - 1784 351216
236276 250 644 1078 882 31049 743 1597 594
25 486 6354 1477 - - 33317
16 888 17443 509 395 30 650 - 574376
193 902 226 847 568010 399 743 989 901
5210 667 2984248 14673 611 6 555 667 15096 112 44 520 305
80012 93 649 283236 5460 - 462 357
157 567 129 123 1046 412 398 2141 1335641
4973 088 2761 476 13 343 963 6549 809 15093 971 42 722 307

December 31, 2015
Corporates
Banks and
Consumer Small and Financial Government and
Banking Medium Large Institutions Public Sector Total

USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
963 903 1403 420 2378086 4198 793 17618 654 26 562 856
3722215 1272774 11309 508 886 620 407 095 17598 212
16 203 40710 124 061 - 306 181280
12 005 28 104 86 927 - 306 127342
4198 12 606 37134 - - 53938
29174 37714 328 011 - - 394899
219 612 254 369 1043 629 31023 1021 1549 654
25936 16 286 17913 97 - 60 232
14473 16 462 487 853 29 670 - 548 458
179 203 221 621 537863 1256 1021 940 964
4934 904 2968 277 15059 234 5116 436 18 026 770 46 105 621
69 626 91491 253 632 4499 - 419 248
171 143 134135 931 868 1353 2751 1241250
4694 135 2 742 651 13 873 734 5110584 18 024 019 44445 123

=5 =
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C. Fair value of collaterals obtained against credit facilities at amortized cost for the year ended 2016 is as follows::

Collaterals against:

Performing Facilities / Low risk

Performing Facilities / Acceptable risk

Watch list

Non-performing :

- Substandard

- Doubtful

- Problematic

Total

Of which:

Cash margin

Accepted Banks letters of guarantees

Real estate properties

Listed securities

Vehicles and equipment

Other

Total

December 31, 2016
Consumer Corporates Bz?nks a.nd Government
Bunkiog  Smalland L tiations Secme o
Medium
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000

568 178 524 090 1374 631 - 267 306 2734 205
1367 892 790 595 4 827 045 3816 972 6990 320
13 462 14 041 148 406 - - 175 909
43 293 57 066 73 980 - - 174 339
12 144 2293 255 - - 14 692
5206 6217 12 886 - - 24 309
25943 48 556 60 839 - - 135338
1992 825 1385792 6 424 062 3 816 268278 10 074 773
367 775 292 609 1050 837 - 1131 1712352
11 167 57431 292973 1280 - 362 851
295 468 478 066 2234 843 - 95 870 3104 247
695 147 219 503 299 - - 651213
99 235 25401 401 523 - - 526 159
1218 485 385 066 1940 587 2536 171277 3 717 951
1992 825 1385792 6 424 062 3816 268 278 10074 773
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- Fair value of collaterals obtained against credit facilities at amortized cost for the year ended 2015 is as follows:

Coliaterals against:

Performing Facilities / Low risk

Performing Facilities / Acceptable risk

Watch list

Non-performing :

- Substandard

- Doubtful

- Problematic

Total

Of which:

Cash margin

Accepted Banks letters of guarantees

Real estate properties

Listed securities

Vehicles and equipment

Other

Total

December 31, 2015
Consumer Corporates Banksand  Government
Banking Small'and Large Fin.anc.ial and Public Total
Medium Institutions Sector
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000

547 895 699 649 1646840 4042 199 389 3097815
1257302 555587 4145685 1 445 3188 5963 207
19197 13787 192 550 - - 225534
47 321 62 521 108 465 - 218 307
14 287 11010 3623 - - 28920
4245 4179 10 088 - - 18512
28 789 47332 94 754 - 170 875
1871715 1331544 6093 540 5487 202 577 9 504 863
267 104 303 148 1013 787 - 3231 1 587270
10 449 34323 292 995 - - 337767
306 283 407 418 2220 489 - 92 839 3027 029
1417 165 437 477116 - 3188 647 158
89 813 13 702 313 582 - - 417 097
1196 649 407516 1775571 5487 103 319 3488 542
1871715 1331544 6093 540 5487 202 577 9 504 863
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D. Classification of debt securities facilities based on risk degree:

The table below analyzes the credit exposure of the debt securities using the credit rating as per the global credit

rating agencies:

Credit rating

Private sector:

AAA to A-

BBB+ to B-

Below B-

Unrated

Governments and public sector

Total

Credit rating

Private sector:

AAA to A-

BBB+ to B-

Below B-

Unrated

Governments and public sector

Total
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December 31, 2016
Financial Other
assets at fair financial
value assets at Total
through amortized
profit or loss cost
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
274 405 1081 792 1356197
- 429414 429 414
- 8 577 8 577
29623 98 648 128 271
352284 6 022 524 6374 808
656 312 7 640 955 8297 267
December 31, 2015
Financial 0 the':
Assets at Financial
. Assets at Total
Fair Value Amortized
through P&L Cost
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
299 539 1319271 1618810
- 342014 342014
- 10 403 10 403
61216 108 023 169 239
423 445 7 223 998 7 647 443
784 200 9 003 709 9 787 909




'ﬁwl

ETLSYY ¥¥ 99T ¥IT 1 €78 616 €69 08L ¥ 019 006 I10 €9L €T 8IL 996 71
LOETTLTY 8y 788 PeT 090 1 09T 1IS S STI S¥6 €68 TET 1T 26T 060 €1
IST 9€€ 0LS T LTS 1€6 88 9sT T 819 S8l 6T 9S
SS60V9L L9V £TT 8L6 T11 ELT 615 918 991 79 9TS € 65¥ 790 €
ErIS0T 1 - - 086 8¢ - 9L S0 1 LIV 111
00¥ LO1 - - - - 6CS 06 12891
69V 8€0 €1  STI v61 Lvy vT Sy LvS 850 631 £6L 1SE6 109 1€L C
8017657 ¢£v08zI PE8 ¥T L0t L8T 09T 1¢ LLT T6E 1 L8% 80L
100SS6¥%  0€1 ¥9¢ 9¢8 € 1S9 L6 ELT I cl6€Si T 6L1 vEV T
IZI 868 IT 867 98¢ LET €S €8¢ 1L6 16S 14T LST €40 ¥1 6662009
TI£ 959 - - LTy LYT 06S v S6T ¥9¢ -
66T86LF OLI 89 CI0 #68 166 9SL 1 89 9Ly €€9 967 1 118 S0¢
6V T6EL  6L61 - SSTL68 I 061 €1 LT89181 81T €99 ¢
000. Asn 000. dsn 000. dsn 000. asn 000. Asn 000. dsn 000, asn
g0, 2_”._.””\“”0& BILIDWY adoany £ BISY MM.“.HMWO ugpaor
9107 ‘I€ Jaquiddaq

seLguno) qery Suipnjoxy ,

ST0T'I€ 43qwadaq jo se - [eyo,

&g,
anjeA Jiey sanisod - soARALISp [eIOUBUL pUE S)ossE 2101 Tg)
1500 pazZIHOWe 1B S)9SSE [BIoURUY Jal()
103093 911qnd pue Jusunsson
suonmusuj [erueUL] pue syueg
sojeiodio)) o8rey
sajetodio)) umipsjyl pue [jewg
3upjueg Jowmsuon)
1500 PaZNIOUIE 1B SANI{I0R] JPAIO J0aM(]
§50] 10 Jyo1d ySnonyy anfea Jiej je sjosse [eIOUBUTY

suonmlsu [eloueuy pue syueq yim s)sodop pue saouejeg

$UBQ [ELYUID YPIM SaoUB[Rg

‘aonnqrysip rearqdeadoasd £q paziioSoyes sansodxa upas)



- 79 -

TEL9L £90 ST 899 1S 8O bL 780 L2 995 LY
1pe 9T 56 €T 68€ T 959 §T s €2 oite
€0P 6 it 6T 8 296 01 9ES £ KL
186 OV - 186 O 0£0 8¢ - 0£0 8£
000, asn 000, asn 000, @sn 000, Asn 000, asn 000, asn
oy Amwbyg 2weduy [T Ambg wodu]
SRuUMQ JO yRwAEg SRuMQ Jo umg
paispitosuo) paEpijosuc’y
S102 '1€ Bquiaiag 910Z *I€ J3quiazdq

'5M0)10} 52 3q [[W A1NbO SIPUMO PUT SWEDNI JO JUBUISITIS PIIEPHOSHED I UO Jordun S

ELUSHPPY 6L VTOSI YRS 011 S 960760€  90L9 €18 918 LIS6T9  0zp SOl PPr8L9E  soTEELT 7L 888 1 TIOSKS P SCIP69P
048 L€ L9 st £5298 ziLse - 8PL6 13793 el L6091 oL 06001 €9 67 vz1 ot
60L £00 6 866 £2Z L L6£01% | 0£€ 061 - $97 5T - - 91 b 9SL vl 661 L1 809 08 -
(860812 896 €0Z 1 z8¢ 161 v609982 9019 9ET TSL 760929  8£0 491 161129€¢  €LL01L1 £85 198 1 ELLBEYD  110BLOD
00Z v8L Svt €z 1€1 1€€ - - 29 62 - - - - - - -
170 160 € - 1Zr 160 € - - - - - - - - - -
9669106 9669106 - - - - - - - - - - -

000, asn 000, asn 000.GSt 000, GSN 000, ASN 000.GS1  000.4SN  000,4SM  000.4SN 000, ASN 000, ASR 000, asn 000, Gsn

woy _msmma TS s sios T ndy ps o e S
PUE JIRURLIZACY pus pyueg o)
sayuzodio)
ST0Z ‘It 19quiassq

LOSTILTY  1L6E60SI 6086VS9  HOSTI6T  €LLS LTI voL 169729 611191 SSTELLE  £6009L1 Tov 1102 IPISIY  BEOELGY
151 9¢¢ 155 121 T 2L ols or st 60V L 169 € 2zt 61 T 657 8 0£6 21 €567 L8081
SS6019 L ¥Z$ 2209 91 L6Z | 789 £v1 - - - - LYZOb 002 82 81661 0Tz €6 -
12186817 €¥150T1 00v L01 T6LTLT  8SLS 60 L99 000619  L066S1 91880L€  pE9ETLI £19286 1 EV8SE0P  [00SS6 P
Z1£959 82 T8¢ vOb pLT - - 29 62 - - - - - - -
667 86L ¥ - 662 86L - - - - - - - . - -
69 Z6€ L 69v Z6£ L - - - - - - - - - - -

000, Gsn 000, asn 000.4SN 000, dsn 000, asn 000.ASN  000.4SN  000,ASN  000,AS  000.dSN 000, asn 000, asn 000, asn

oL 101398 Sqng n._.u..u...w..__ﬂ;_._.. ._ah.huw sazyg vonepodsurs) aumﬂ.ﬂ- ummuly  apesg awsF ey suondnisuo) u.m___.._u_.n_.a Suppeg
pue ~=0-=50>°u pue spueg .-UE-M—-GU
sQeaodio)

9107 *I1€ +3quaRq

oL
Apanisuas saoud siuswnnsm Knbg
Anamisuas ojes aBueyoxe uBialog

Aanisuas ajes 1sdruy

(%) £q 98umy 5 107 pur 9107' 1 £ 9qua0eq Jo 58 sooud 1jseus Surwnssy

Auanisuas ysny 1aysejn
SETH RSP

fsog,
an[eA 118y 9ANISOd - SIANIBALIDP [BIDUBUL) PUE SJ9SSE 1910
1502 PIZILIOWE IR §]9SST [RIJUELY 12410
1500 POZILOWE 1 SAANITRY JIPIID 153I1(]
§50] 40 3yj01d YGnoIy) IN[RA 1IEJ I8 SISST [LIOURULY
suonmMuSUI [BIDUEUY puw SUR] i siisodop pue soourleg

S{uRg [ROUI) Yiim seduejeg

moy
AN{uA 21T 3AUISOd -~ SIAIRALISP [EIDUBUL PUR SIasSE JAI0
1500 PAZILIOWE 18 SI3SSE [MSURUL II0
150 PIZILIOWE I SIN|198] 1IPILD 15311 (]
$50[ 10 1youd ySnouy In[EA 1YY I 5I95SE [BIOUBUL]
suoumnNsul [RIdURLY pUE SYuRq M SISodIp pue ssoueeg

S{ueg [enua) yim souereg

401235 10U £q pazLI0TaEd aunsodxs ppa) o



-€9 -

9€S 191 8 {T6Z166+) 8919995 9IEOPEE (ee€ 9¢F) 768099 191 LbT YTIELO €
SS8S6T6E  PLLYIPEI  6LE LEI obI 885 095 007 € €51.897 018 0¥S S 6£0 LIL €I
9%z 1 9z 1 - - - - - -
SPO1TI | 180 656 1z $80¢ 989§ S10 b g0 581 €6
S6L 652 6L 65T - - - - - -
LLETHT LLETHT - - - - - -
81 14T - 65T 8C 0S0 €1 €109 S0E9 528 961 £€L 0T
9Ty 195 ¢ TEL 8bE v 9 66 01 06v LT1 £09 bLT 990 ¢81 91L 609
TSIZB01E 96998011 9186 L0 6£S 79919LC wligee 180 9¢4 & 180 626 6
666 TSL € LIV LIS zio b L£6 2T 60L 66T 80 1€1 915 €0L YTEVLOT
16€09v Ly  I8vETH S LYS 108§ 95b vE6 € LITYILT SP0 8YE € 1L6 L8LS £99 00% L1
06€ ££ 06€ €L - - - - - -
P1zZ 0€S 6.8 S6¢ 1529 £L6 01 96 1 £€T €€ 900 87 806 €5
££9 €9 £€£9 €9 - - - - - -
800LL0€ 800 LL0 € - - - - - -
$S60v9 L - 065 81€ 1 £57800¢ 869 00T | £v1 8L6 1187291 [ 09v 7L6
z16 0L Ti6 0Ly - - - - - -
121 868 1T - 96 TLT ¥ LIL96L | 8ETOS | S08 421 T S8 L80 b 185508
915 869 YOz T 08¢ €07 9.1 98 9€0 61 TET 801 8L 791 00 9L
66T 86L ¢ - - LE0TE 1622 769 £01 TS 9e LBLEIE Y
7696709 $080Z1¢ - - - - - L88 806 €
LLLTYE L LLLTIE | - - - - - -
L8 91 vL8 91 - - - - - -
000, SN 000, SN 000. SN 000, SN 000, SN 000, asn 000, ASN 000, asn
NSt EWU» € lIs pue JBIX I m-—uﬂcs 9 m-—:—OE
Isi0], AU IRP] wL gusp IO A Tumposopy 'YW PUSSWUOW  mpuesyuo g n pue yuow Yuo | 0 dy
0} pai ] JoN 9 UBLY) IO € uBt) IO 1 uey) 2104}

den

ssnqe e,
SanNIqel] xe) pausjag
oN[eA Ire] ANE33U - SIANBALISP [BlOURUI} PUE S3NIIGRI] Y10
suoisiaoxd 1oy10
XB) JWO0JUI 10] UOISIAOL]
spunj pamouiog
uidrew yse)
sysodap 1outoisnyy
susodap suonmnsul [epoueRuy pue syueg

SALLITIAVI'T

SLISSY TVIOL
SI9SSE Xu) paLaja(]
aneA Jre} SANIsod - SIAIBALISP [BIDUBUJ PUE SI3SSE JoYI0
S19SsE paxi]
S3IBID0SSE Ul SJUSUNSIAU]
150D P3ZILIOUre J¢ SI9SSE [eldreul 1910
3wooul aA1sUSY3IdWOD J3I0 YSNOIY) SN[ ITe) JE SIOSSE [eloueul
1502 PazIpIoure Je SaNN{I158] JIPaId 10aN(]
$50{ 10 1501d YENOIY) 3N[EA Jre] 1 S)9sSE [erowRUL]
suonmnsul feloueLl pue sjueq YIm syisodap pue saoueeyg
Sy ueq [eRUID YIim S3ouBjRyg
9AIDS3I s 1ojepuRiy
sinea je yse)

SLASSV

*(4350[3 s1 12A31PIYM *Aep Qnjew 1o Sundiidas ager 1$3.131U] UC PISEq S UOBIYISSEI) 9IOT ‘TE JIGUIAII( JO SB AN[NEJ0A e Jsa1aym 0 asnsodxy dnoas ay st mopag

RE S REET IT



-F9 -

I8SSI0 8 (181 618 %) 8SH ELS ¥ V9L 861 ¥ pLI9 STV 189 £62 T0L ¥1T v8p 871 €
10620 It €L8T0L €1 98S 60C TEE T0L 8EY €60 € PE6 €€1 € SE6 9P S PI6 ObL PI
€01 T1 €01 21 - - - - - -
656 089 [ £EVS $9S 1 960 1 544 S6L9 veeie 0€€ 81 9IS LS
SET S SET SHI - - - - - -
816 S€T 816 S€T - - - - - -
SYLSL - 810 €¥ 8L0 L1 129¢ 80¢£ 01 91l vsel
060 €v¥ T 90% $0v v 8 8¢£8 0T 01s 6vt 879 ¥ST 968 ST 0P 640 1
8TT 66L T€ 09% 910 11 0L0 LST 968 959 SO0T VLS T PTL8TILT 980 ZEC ¥ L8 eev 1t
PEL9EY € 80T £T¢€ - SI19 LST09 050 601 LOE 6£6 L6L861T
€65 v+0 6v 269 €88 8 Pr0 €8L ¢ 960 006 v I GIS € SI9LIV € 9€9199¢S 86€ 698 LI
6279 8¢ 679 8¢ - - - - - -
PIL 8SS L6 99¢ 09 0LS 6 90L € §08 6T §9€ T L1L 9T
vy 1Sy v 1Sy - - - - - -
06T916¢C 06T916C - - - - - -
60L €00 6 - STO VET 1 I€L8IV T LOO6LL T PTL 088 S65T¢9 1 LT9890 1
8€0 6L 8€0 6LY - - - - - -
L86 081 T¢ - 68T viy € 19 68¢€ T LY 0ES 1 T66 ¥SE T ce8 TBE € 88L 806
086 1€8 08L LYy 0L9 ¥L 18128 10€ S61 8% 98 6¥L 99T LI8 8L
Iy 160 € - - - 979 01 CI9SL $60 L9E 8808€9°C
628 181 L 89V ELI T - - - - - 19€800 §
LOT SEB T LOT SE8 1 - - - - - -
St SSb 344394 - - - - - -
000. ASn 000, asn 000, Asn 000, Asn 000. ASN 000. dsn 000. Asn 000, @SN
s s18a) SIB3X € TERATHS  SPUON 9D suo ¢ In
eso], ey Jsatduy ¢ treyy asopy P pusteax  puesyuoly  pue syyuopy pue puolN  yYuopy J 03 dpy
0) paL] JON TUBI IO guey) al0l  gueyyaiopy | uey) dsopy

*(1350)3 51 12A3YdMY M ‘yEp ANangBu J0 Surdradal sy 153193l U0 paseq s) HOYBIIY

deo

sanmqey jero,
SantIqel] xel paugjaQg
3N[EA 1E} SAIRFIU - SIANRALISP [BIOUBUY PUR SINIIGRI] 19IO
suoisiaoxd 19(po
XE] SWOUT 10 UOISIAOI]
Spuny pamouiog
wgrew yse)
susodap 1awojsny
susodop suonmnsul [eroueuy pue syueg

SALLITIGVIY

SLIASSV TVIOL
S19S58 Xe} pauaja(]
N[eA N1gj 2ANISOd - SIATIRALIOP [RIOUBUL PUE SIOSSE J3YI()
S19SSE PaxIy
SOIRIDOSSE U SJUSULSIAU]
1500 PIZILIOWIR I8 S}3SSE [RIOURUL IO
120 YSnonp anea rej je sjosse [eIoURULY
1502 PAZIHIOUIE e SLN[IOR] 1PAID 109N
§50] Jo 3yo1d ySnop an[eA Jrej I8 S19SSE [RIOURUL]
suonmusul [eloueay pue sjueq gum sjisodsp pue sosuejeq
Sueq [EHUID PIM SIdUE[RE
9A13531 yses A1ojepuejy
Si[neA je yse)

SLASSV

1SSBI3) S10T ‘T€ 42quiadaq Jo se AJjipejoa el Jsasayut o) aunsodxyg dnousy ay) sy mojg



-59 -

SpUmBW pa3adxs 0) SuIpa0dde spassy jejo ],

|NUIqer] B0l
saul[Iqel] xey paugjag
SanIqel] 130
SNJeA 1ig} 9ANRESU - SIALBALIAP [BlOUBUL]
SUOISIAOI] JOYI0
X®} SWOodUl JOJ UOISIAOL]
Spunj pamouog
uisrew yse)
susodop 1awoisn)
susodap ,suonmnsul [e1dueLY pue Sjueg

sunqery

STOT ‘1€ 13quada Jo S8 AyLmysws [enpisas a3 0} 3ujp10338 (PIJUNOISIPUN) SIVI[IQEI AU JO UORNGLISIP ) 51 MOJG AL

£6S ¥¥0 6¢ LTERYI II +96 86€ 8 01L 0229 66 10V £ vI6SL8 T S6EIY S PSETSO 11
L06 S6S 1 €LE 990 PI 619 81€ 868048 I 6€£€ 60€ € SLLS8S € OLT LLES €€L L60 €1
€01 Tl €01 T1 - - - - - -
YST LT 1 869 ¥SS boE 08 $96 86T LI ov¥ 6T [4114] 065 LYy
96 €5 19¢€ ¥€ (74 91 € 06 1 0Lz 1911 18¥ T
SeT Skl SETSKl - - - - - -
816 S€T 816 S€T - - - - - -
126 SL - €8 8% 8L0 L1 1L9C 899 v 91¢ 1 123!
18L 6¢4 T 90v 0V ole 8L9 1v z8s 1IS (A48 743 778 00T 9¢8 996
LSI 911 €€ v 95€ Tl 148 65T 9¢p €81 86091LT VES SL8 T oy ssz v €LE 698 6
VLS 618 € 807 €£T€ - VL 67 oveE 09 918 6¥¢ 89¢ 906 660012C
000, SN 000, asn 000. ASN 000, ASN 000. SN 000, AsN 000, SN 000, ASN
Qumep SIBIX SPUOIA € 1IN
JBIX UQ NIP SPUOAl 9 11D
18101, aypadg SIB2X €43V €[N puB 1BIX . S PuUE syyuoy WUOW [ uIgIA
® 0] pary, JoN auQ Joyy Pus SQIUOIAl 9 PPV PUE SRUOA € PV [ 1oV
16€ 09 LY o Tsv 21 I1ST 768 S8S SL6 S 66S PIL £ 89L8IS T 08€ €6 ¥ L9L €80 01
S61 80S 6€ 9L0 IEY ¥1 FI8 €££T I€S €80 1 EPLIES € 6PTLL6T €96 786 S [44: X4 41}
9T 1 9T 1 - - - - - -
8C1¢CL01 €1L S09 1LZ $80 T€€ 8¥S ¢ 133244 S8Y 91 1LE 89
IYA¥4Y LLE €T ovv S L6T T 16C 1S €Ll 968 61
S6L 65T S6L 65T - - - - - -
LLETYT LLETYT - - - - - -
¥6S 1LT - 89L €S 96C ¥6 1€¥ T 66C 6 S8TII11 Sis
0l1169s¢C 81t 99¢ 06¢€ 9zo L1 £26 L9T [A4R 443 12€ 08T ce8 88T 1
S9T 88T I€ €0L PIV T 689 691 961 §19 $80196C 689 0SC T (Y4 %424 YZL Sy 8
STISSLE LIV LIS 13944 149 2T S9% 66C 80F 6Z¢ 0Ev OST 1 187 IEY |
000. SN 000. Asn 000. ASn 000, ASN 000, ASN 000, SN 000, SN 000, ASN
Hume SI183 syjuo ¥
moL s swaceuy cmpwams | SUKNOW o ewowsm | Shemem
#03 poYL 10N suguayy  PUESWUOW 9BV pus SQUON ¢ PV | souy

SNUNBW Pa3dadxad 03 Surpaodde spessy (B0

SnIiqery B0
Saniiqer| xel pausjaq
santiqey 19\o
IN[RA 1IBJ SAIIE3IU - SSAIRALIOP [BIOURUL]
SUOISIAOL] JoYI0
Xe] SWOdUI 10J UOISIAOI
Spunj pamouog
uidrew ysey
susodop Iswoisn))
sjisodap suonmsut [e1duRUL pue syueg

sanniqery

9107 “I€ 13quIa33q JO SE ALmyBLL [ENPISaI 3) 0} BuIP1030E (PAJUNCISIPUN) SANIQEY] AN JO UORNQLISIP Y} ST MO YL




48, Net Forelgn Currency Positions

The details of this item are as foltowa. December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
currency Base
In Eq currency in  Eq
thousands  _In USD 00O _thousands _In USD 000
usb 30 907 30907 45115 45115
GBP 8624 10564 405) 6004
EUR 35444 37069 (21628) (23a)
IPY 537854 469% 954 750 7927
CHF 3003 2926 (1250) (1263}
Other currencies * 39432 131 681
125 594 165 843

* Various foreign currencics translated 1o US Dollars.

49._Falr Value Hierarchy

u. Falr value of financial assets and finsacisl lsbilltles measured at fair value on recurring basls,

Some of the financinl assets and financial lisbilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair value of these
financial asscts and financial liabilities are determined (valuation techniques and key mputs).

Fair Valuc es at Fair Value Jelustion key Significat Relationship of
Financial assets / Financial fiabilities December 31, Hierarchy inputs inputs inputs to fair
2016 201§
Flnancis! nssets o1 falr value USD '000 USD '000
Financia) sssets at fir value through profit or loss
Government Bords and bills 352284 4231445 Level | Quoted Not Applicable  Not Applicable
Cacporate bonds 274404 331131 Level 1 Quoted Not Applicable  Not Applicable
Ca i f
‘omparison of " N
Loans and advances 19624 29624 Level 2 similar financial Not Applicable  Not Applicable
instruments
Shares and mutual funds 42 204 47780 Level ) Quoted Not Applicable  Not Applicable
Total Financial Assets a¢ falr value through Profit er Loss 698 516 831 980
Financial derivatives - positive fair valuc 8011 58238 Level2 f:‘m ‘:ﬂ'l Not Applicable  Not Applicable
instruments
Financal assets ot fair value through
other comprehensive income;
Quated shares 158 920 156 T Level 1 Quotcd Shares  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
Through using the
Unquoted shares 201992 222 262 Level 2 index sectorinthe  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
market
Total Financial Assets at falr value through other comprehensive Income 470912 479 038
Total Financlal Asscts st Fair Value 1227 439 1369 253
——— ——
Financist Liabllitles at Fair Value
Lhrough
. Comparison of . .
Financia! demivatives - negative fair value 52517 53708 Level 2 similar financial Not Applicable  Not Applicable
—_—— instruments
Tatal Financial Liabilities st Fair Value 52517 53 708
——
There were no transfers between Level | and 2 dunng 2016 & 205
B. Fulr value of finncial assets snd Ananclal liabllities that are not messurcd st falr value on recurring basis.
Except as detailed in the following table, we belicve that the carrying amounts of financie] assets and financial liabililies ized in the Group idated financial i their fair values,
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Falr value

Book value _Falr value _Book value_ Falr value Hierarchy
USD '000 USD 000 USD‘008  USD '000

Financial assets not calculsted at falr value

Mandatory reserve at Central Banks 1362777 1362777 1835107 1835107 Level2
Time and nolice balances with Central banks 3256190 3257236 4392724 4393693 Level2
Certificates of deposit with central hanks 652697 653016 615637 615686 Level2
Balances and Deposits with banks and Financial institutions 4756411 41758677 3091421 3095935 Lewel2
Direct credit facilities at ainortized cost 21898121 21993672 22180987 22247851 Level2
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 7640955 7715969 9003709 9095897 Level 1 &2
Total finsnclul assets not calculated at fair value 39567153 39741447 41119585 41284 169
—

Flnancial Uabilities not calculsted af fair value

Banks aid financial institutions’ deposits 3752999 3762201 3636734 3643427 Level2
Customer deposits 31082152 31172506 32799228 32907308 Level2
Cash margin 2361426 2569114 24430 2449507 Level2
Borrowed funds 271185 275415 75 743 77128 Level2
Total financial Habllitles not calculated at fair value 37667762 37779236 38954797 39077370

‘The fair values of the financia) assets and (inancial liabilities included in level 2 ies above have beer; d ed in wilh the generally accepled pricing models

based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the mest significant inputs being thal discount rate,



50- Analysis of Assets and Liabilities Maturities

The below is an analysis for assets and liabilities maturities according to the expected period to be recovered or settled as at December 31, 2016:

UP to One Year More than One Year Total
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Assets
Cash at vaults 416 874 - 416 874
Mandatory cash reserve 1362777 - 1362777
Balances with central banks 6 029 692 - 6029 692
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4766 260 32039 4798 299
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 208 948 489 568 698 516
Direct credit facilities at amortized cost 11317 575 10 580 546 21 898121
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 470912 470912
Other financial assets at amortized cost 3 870 890 3770065 7 640955
Investment in subsidiaries and associates - 3077 008 3077008
Fixed assets - 463 633 463 633
Other assets and financial derivatives - positive fair value 504 596 25618 530214
Deferred tax assets 73 390 - 73 390
Total assets 28 551 002 18 909 389 47 460 391
Liabilities
Banks' and financial institutions' deposits 3726331 26 668 3752999
Customer deposits 30443 086 639 066 31082152
Cash margin 2544011 17415 2561 426
Borrowed funds 123 349 147 836 271 185
Other Provisions 259 795 - 259 795
Provision for income tax 242377 - 242377
Other liabilities and financial derivatives - negative fair value 784 552 340 093 1124 645
Deferred tax liabilities 1276 - 1276
Total liabilities 38124777 1171078 39295 855
Net (9 573 775) 17 738 311 8 164 536
The below is an analysis for assets and liabilities maturities according to the expected period to be recovered or settled as at December 31, 2015:
UP to One Year More than One Year Total
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Assets
Cash at vaults 455 445 - 455 445
Mandatory cash reserve 1 835107 - 1835107
Balances with central banks 7181 829 - 7181 829
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3091 421 - 3091 421
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 448 550 383430 831980
Direct credit facilities at amortized cost 12 044 419 10 136 568 22180987
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 479 038 479 038
Other financial assets at amortized cost 4932100 4071 609 9003 709
Investment in subsidiaries and associates - 2916 290 2916 290
Fixed assets - 451 444 451 444
Other assets and financial derivatives - positive fair value 530647 28067 558 714
Deferred tax assets 58 629 - 58 629
Total assets 30 578 147 18 466 446 49 044 593
Liabilities
Barniks' and financial institutions' deposits 3630617 6117 3636734
Customer deposits 31 966 629 832599 32799 228
Cash margin 2402 588 40 502 2443 090
Borrowed funds 10009 65 736 75 745
Provision for income tax 235918 - 235918
Other Provisions 145235 - 145 235
Other liabilities and financial derivatives - negative fair value 702 395 978 564 1 680 959
Deferred tax liabilities 12103 - 12103
Total liabilities 39 105 494 1923 518 41 029 012
Net (8 527 347) 16 542 928 8 015 581
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S1. Contractual Maturity of the Contingent Accounts

The table below details the maturity of expected liabilities and commitments on the basis

of contractual maturity:

Letters of credit

Acceptances

Letters of guarantee:

- Payment guarantees

- Performance guarantees

- Other guarantees

Unutilized credit facilities
Total

Constructions projects contracts
Procurement contracts
Operating lease contracts

Total

Letters of credit

Acceptances

Letters of guarantee:

- Payment guarantees

- Performance guarantees

- Other guarantees

Unutilized credit facilities
Total

Constructions projects contracts

Procurement contracts
Operating lease contracts
Total

December 31, 2016
More than 1
Within 1 Year  Yearandupto5 More than 5 Years Total
Years
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
2132727 23432 - 2156 159
639 065 14 093 - 653 158
680 695 209 290 31 689 921 674
3809 591 1 838 842 1128 180 6776 613
2799 246 857 231 558 173 4214 650
4437 406 444 920 57 680 4 940 006
14 498 730 3 387 808 1775722 19 662 260
2108 17 805 - 19913
8535 2134 954 11 623
4712 9958 22 361 37 031
15 355 29 897 23 315 68 567
December 31, 2015
More than 1
Within 1 Year  Yearandupto5 More than 5 Years Total
Years
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
1437 791 714 602 - 2152393
679 717 8 642 - 688 359
639 728 74 136 15964 729 828
3738318 2286 546 1130 903 7 155 767
3233 887 1017 004 677 384 4 928 275
4515 813 499 238 54 722 5069 773
14 245 254 4600 168 1878 973 20724 395
450 11979 - 12 429
11084 4 503 1145 16 732
4 653 11912 13 692 30 257
16 187 28 394 14 837 59 418
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52. Capital Management

On October 31, 2016, the Central Bank of Jordan announced the instructions of capital management according to Basel III standards
and stopped Basel II instructions.

The Group manages its capital to safeguard its ability to continue its operating activities while maximizing the return to shareholders.
The composition of the regulatory capital, as defined by Basel III standards is as follows:

December 31,
2016
USD '000

Commeon Equity Tier 1 7456 710
Regulatory Adjustments ( Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1) (1455 681)
Additional Tier 1 10515
Supplementary Capital 386 022
Regulatory Adjustments ( Deductions from Supplementary Capital) (956 826)
Regulatory Capital 5 440 740
Risk-weighted assets (RWA) 34 688 682
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio %15.68
Tier 1 Capital Ratio %15.68
Capital Adequacy Ratio %15.68
The below schedule illustrates the Regulatory Capital according to Basel I, as at December 31, 2015

December 31,

2015
USD '000

A- Core Capital
Share capital 926 615
Statutory reserve 753 065
Voluntary reserve 9771315
Share premium 1225747
General reserve 1141 824
Retained earnings * 1194 643
Foreclosed assets -
Non-controlling interests 93 980
Total core capital 6313 189
B- Supplementary Capital
Foreign currency translation reserve (284 609)
Investments revaluation reserve (260 621)
Subordinated loans 13 867
General banking risk reserve 363 458
Total supplementary capital (167 905)
C- Deductible Items 1454 595
Regulatory capital (A+B-C) 4 690 689
Risk-weighted assets (RWA) 33 026 774
Regulatory capital / risk-weighted assets 14.20%
Core capital / risk-weighted assets 14.20%

* Includes deferred tax and intangible assets

- The Board of Directors performs an overall review of the capital structure of the Group on a quarterly basis. As part of this review,
the Board takes into consideration matters such as cost and risks of capital as integral factors in managing capital through setting
dividend policies and capitalization of reserves.
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53. Transactions with Related Parties

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31, 2016
Deposits Owed Dlre?tfredlt Deposits Owed L.C‘s, LGs, .
Facilities at Unutilized Credit
from Related . to Related e
A Amortized . Facilities and
Parties Parties
Cost Acceptances
USD '000 USD '000 USD 000 USD '000
Associated companies 231423 - 119573 92714
Major Shareholders and Members of the
Board of Directors - 479 288 452 648 98 567
231 423 479 288 572 221 191 281
December 31, 2015
Deposits Owed D're?t. ?redlt Deposits Owed L'C.s, LGs, .
Facilities at Unutilized Credit
from Related X to Related rese
N Amortized . Facilities and
Parties Parties
Cost Acceptances
USD '000 USD '000 USD '000 USD '000
Associated companies 110 246 - 111 949 90 068
Major Shareholders and Member of the
Board of Directors - 534 053 412 129 66 907
110 246 534 053 524078 156 975

- All facilities granted to related parties are performing loans in accordance with the credit rating of the Group. No provisions for
the year have been recorded in relation to impairment in value.

The details of transactions with related parties are as follows:

2016

Interest Income  Interest Expense

USD '000 USD '000

Associated companies 2143 2249

2015

Interest Income  Interest Expense

USD '000 USD '000

Associated companies 579 163

- Direct credit facilitates granted to key management personnel amounted to USD 1.6 million and indirect credit facilities
amounted to USD 8.5 thousand as of December 31,2016 (USD 1.9 million direct credit facilities and USD 8.5 thousand indirect
credit facilities as of December 31, 2015).

- Deposits of key management personnel amounted to USD 3 million as of December 31, 2016 (USD 2.2 million as of December
31,2015)

- Interest on credit facilities granted to major shareholders and members of the Board of Directors is recorded at arm's length.

- The salaries and other fringe benefits of the Group's key management personnel, inside and outside Jordan, amounted to USD
56.7 million for the year ended on December 31, 2016 (USD 57.7 million for the year ended on December 31, 2015).
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54. Earnings Per Share

The details of this item are as follows: December 31,

2016 2015

USD '000 USD '000
Profit for the year attributable to Shareholders of the Bank 522 187 430 830

Thousand Shares

Average number of shares 640 800 640 800
USD / Share
Earnings Per Share (Basic and diluted) 0.81 0.67

55. Assets under management

Assets under management as of December 3 1, 2016 amounted to USD 3442 million
(USD 3219 million as of December 31,2015). These deposits are not included in the Group
consolidated financial statements.

56. Cash and Cash Equivalent

The details of this item are as follows: December 31,

2016 2015

USD '000 USD '000

Cash and balances with central banks maturing within 3 months 7 809 343 9472 381
Add: balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within 3 3 822 181 2992 403
months
Less: banks and financial institutions deposits maturing within 3 3281 686 2 949 869
months

Total 8 349 838 9514915
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A.

57. Legal Cases

In 2004, a number of civil lawsuits were filed against Arab Bank plc alleging that the Bank
provided financial services to individuals and entities who were characterized as "terrorists" and
“terrorist organizations" operating in the Palestinian Territories. The plaintiffs claimed
damages from the Bank alleging that these financial services constituted material support for
terrorist activities.

After a civil trial in the Eastern District Court of New York, on September 22, 2014, a jury
found the Bank liable for the plaintiffs who possessed U.S. citizenship and who claimed
damages as a result of alleged attacks perpetrated by Hamas.

The Court scheduled August 17, 2015, to proceed with a “bellwether” damages trial limited to
three incidents and a number of those plaintiffs. On August 14, 2015, a settlement agreement
was reached by the parties and upon the request of the plaintiffs and the Bank; the Judge
postponed the damages trial to implement the said agreement.

The settlement agreement was reached by the parties pursuant to which they agreed to forego
the bellwether damages trial and to adopt a mechanism which would allow the Bank to appeal
the liability verdict without payment of this amount or presenting any bond to the Court.
Pursuant to said agreement, the Bank filed its Notice of Appeal to the Court of Appeals on
June 22, 2016 and its appellate brief on October 20, 2016.

The settlement agreement has been entered into upon acceptable terms and without admission
by the Bank of liability for any wrongdoing. This settlement agreement will put an end to the
litigation, which has been outstanding for over 12 years, and it has provided a framework
limiting the financial liability of the Bank deriving from it. The Bank has sufficient provisions
to cover the expected financial obligations under this agreement. In the opinion of
management and counsel representing the Bank in the above-referred matter, this agreement is
deemed to be in the best interest of the Bank.

In the year 2005, the Bank in New York entered into an agreement with the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency pursuant to which the branch was converted into a Federal
Agency with limited operations in compliance with the provisions of the U.S. Federal Banking
Act.

There are other lawsuits filed against the Group totaling USD 143.6 million as of
December 31, 2016 (USD 135.7 million as of December 31, 2015).

In the opinion of the management and the lawyers representing the Group in the litigation
at issue, the Group will not be held liable for any amount in excess of the amount of
provisions taken in connection with the lawsuits totaling USD 18.3 million as of December
31,2016 (USD 8 million as of December 31, 2015).

58. Comparative Figures

Some comparative figures in the consolidated financial statements for the year 2015 have
been reclassified to be consistent with the year 2016 presentation and it didn’t cause any
changes in last years operating results.
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